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Management report

1. INTRODUCTION

The DIV group ended FY 2020 with positive results and key indicators in line with expectations and
plans. FY 2020 is very specific in many areas of business given the global outbreak of the COVID-19
virus pandemic and its impact pn economic trends, supply, demand. logistical requirements, limited
trends and direct contacts. Despite all the negative effecis of the COVID-18 virus pandemic, positive
results were achiavad, a significant increase in results and the realization of new markets. We continued
10 diversify our operations, markets and sources of ravenue in erder to minimize and balance the overall
irpact of the risks that exist from each market separately. In the investment part of the business, we
completed the planned investment in technetogica!l water treatment plants at the location of the Knin
branch, and i the shipbullding part, unti the end of the arbitration dispute with the Criginai Buyer of NB,
483, we joined the vessel to our own fleet, and for the purpose of filling the capacity and using a vessel
called Golden Harizon, we founded the company Tradewind Voyages Ltd, based in the United Kingdom,
bringing together a team of experlenced and proven staff in the industry with whom the process of
gathering guests for planned trips has begun. We continued to invest in equipment and devices needed
w improve the production progess, process control or performance of individual works.

Ve continued to strengthen the construction of infrastructure facilities as an independent contractar or
as a member of a consortium |/ subcontractor, which significantly expanded the range of products and
services for the current domaestic market with the ultimate geal of participating in simitar projects in

fareign markets.

In 2020 activites cantnued i the mpigmentation of the foancial exposure strategy at thy level of the
Group, Since the volume of activa are! announced projects is signficantly increasing compared o
previnus penads. s logical by by o sec e the financing of these projects on the infernationat financial
market. Therefore. the intention in the farthooming penod & 16 finance projects of significant amourts
orimanly on the foreign marke: with the parbeipation of domestic banks within their limits, Caonsidarnng
that the business activities of companies fresm the Graup include the frequant use of banking producis
such as guarantees and letlers of credit, the assumption is that we will have this type of expesurs

covered in the local financal market, i ageardance with the mentioned strategy, in 2020 3 loan of BUR

320 mil relater ta the NB 485 project was realized on the foreign financial markel. At the same time,
the circle of basiks with which ghart-term: placements {(Jefters of credit, guarantees, short-term loans have

been agreed] has expanded on the domestic market.

DIV GRUPA d.on and subsidiaries !
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Wiaeag eirent report (continued)
B CRGANIBAYION AML: COMPANY MANAGEMENT IN 2020
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Management report {continued)

3. FINANCIAL STATUS AND BUSINESS RESULTS

3.1 COMPANY ASSETS

As at 31.12.2020, the current asseis were HRK 2.021.934 ihousand (2019: HRK 1.438.288 thousand),
while non-current assets amounted to HRK 2,369,837 thousand {2019 HRK 2.206.274 thousand).

The most significant share of nor-current assets is that of buildings, infrasiructure and piant and
equipment amaounting 1o HRK 2,316,850 (2019 HRK 2.136.386 thousand)

3.2 BUSINESS RESULTS FOR 2020

In 2020. Group realized a consglidated net profit HRK 95.480 thousand (2019 HRK 73.218 thousandy.

4. EXPOSURE AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The group is exposed to various financial risks related to:

-

PRICE RISK — prices of raw materials on the market

CAPITAL RIBK — ratig of net dabt and capital

CURRENCY RISK — currency movement of EUR and USD because the Group has foreign
contracts mostly denaominated in EUR and USD cufrency

CREOIT RISK - the ahility of deblors to pay their debis to the Group. They refer to unfuffiled
contracted obfigations of sacand parties. The Group pretects #self from such risks by means of
Payment Securities and apphes procedures that ensure sates to customers who have a sound
and refiable credit history

LIQUIHTY RISK — refers to the risk that cash recsipts that will not be enough to cover current
cash outflows. The Group is protected by montoting planned and realized cash flows and
monitoring of financial assets and financial liabilities.

COMPETITION RISK - refers to the risk of unfaif competition due to priviteged treatment of

competing companies by the couniries in which they operate

DIV GRUPA d.o.0. and subsidiariss ) - 3



Mungemarnd report (continued)
S TPUSURE AND FHSE MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

" reln OF FINANGING OPTIONS- refers to the phencmenon in which domeslic fingncial
S-chetiens hanks) rejest ary financial arrangement (eredis, guarantees, lettars of credit) or lirut
Cwegiginte vahas s Tos the Shipkuiiding industry. The reason for refusal referred to negative
4w e eai indicators of otner major shipbuilding companies in Croatia

P EE L NEGATIVE MEDHA RELEASES - refers to medha releases aimed at comgremising
v Cotrsiny's aperctlons, and which cause significznt atle vtion o key tusiness factors, such

s overnment inshwlions, customers, financiers, supply chains, by stopping ot significantly

b

e gy dfown regudar business processes

E. HUMAN RESOURCES
A5 et Dasemper 2020 the Grous fad ¢ 887 employees (201%. 3.224). When hiring new empioyees,
@ onge e sehection process 13 carricd oul through tests and interoews Special attendion is dedicated

wesaent s gooung and guedfiee indwicuals or highly qualifive stafl with siperienca,

€ PUTLIRE BUSINESS DEVELCFMENT

1217 GRAURA oo, s commuted 1o ils business growth based on thoughtful investrments 1 eguipment
and witrg - tochee, introducing neve lechrologies, optimizing busness processes, nvesling in bum:an
res oLrcE | arr winning new méarkels anc oustomers. We cortinue to strengthen ou- presence with the

L mark A which s doninant for our ousirzss and also in oiher markets giobally. L.ast yeor was markad

qy tres SOVID-19 virgs pandamis wiich greatly disrupted e exanution of plans in full. The Company™s

nEnagattert iag aken all necessan weesures in a imely mannat to minimize the negative impact and

Lomsasydere s of pandemic.




Managenment report (continued)

4. FUTURE BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT (CONTINUED)

‘Ne cortinued to optimise preduction processes, increase productivity as a basic prereguisite for cost
reductions per product unit or time needed to produce and incraase the quality and reliabilizy of the
nrocess. The working capftal that we needed for the growth of production, even in times of reduced
demand, in order to prowvide stocks for the demand that followed, we secured by credit engagement with
banks and other financial patners. We have done all the necessary preparatory acticns to make a
Jecision pn tha introduction of anti-dumping duties for standard crew machine products in the EU, from

which we expect significantly higher demand to increase our competitiveness during 2021,

‘Ne have increased our share in the project for the construction of the railway (1 rew track and
reptacement of the old one) Dugo Selo-Krizevel by HRK 155 miltion from the consortium partner Zagrek
Monteze d.d. and thus we will earn significantty more than initially cantracted.

‘Ne continue to strengthen the business relationship with the Brodospit Group on the urification of
individual procurement procedures, consolidation of quantities, to strengthen internal competitiveness
in the products launching and services required for the implementation of shipbuilding projects.

‘Mith this synergy, we additiorally strengthen profitability, but alse the possibility of realizing high-value
prijects in {he planned deadlines, regardless of the availablity of others,

During 2020, we contracied a number ¢f projects in the field of development and research, thus realizing
prajacts that we have been praparing for a longer period of time. We ermphasize the largest CEKOM
feompetence center) in the Republic of Croatia, where we are invelved in 16 projects, and in 12 of the
16 prejects we are involved as the holder of the project itselt, In addition to the aforementioned CEKOM,
we are working on the realizetion of contracted energy efficiency projects, research and development

projects {so-called IR,

in the part of shipbuilding activity, Brodospiit's order book ircludes ships with a total valug of around
EUR 604 million, signed letters of intent worth EUR 717.45 million, and projects with a high degres of
pre-agreement worth EUR 120,85 millien. In the part of non-shipbwilding activity, Brodosplit has
coniracted works worth EUR 8.2 million, and very promising projects with a high degree of pre-
confracting worth EUR 64.97 million. In 2020, Brodosplit became recognized as a key player in the
passenger ship market hecause it showed that it buiids both in quality and within the agreed
construction deadlines. 1n 2020, Brodosplit launched Uitramarine, a NB 487 passenger ship for polar
expeditions and laid a keel for the NB 485. In addition, projects for the largest shipbuiiding group
Fincantieri ard a project for the offshore wind farm rarket were completed.
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Meiagement report (continued)
7. FUTURE SUSINESS DEVELOPMENT (CONTINUED)

in 2{ 20, Srodosplit signed a contract for the construction of a 240m long cable layer. The contracts are
nlanned 1o enter into force by the third cuarter of 2021. In addition, Brodosplit continues to work on the
gavelopmunt of tha market for military skips - coastal patrol ships and larger warships that have shown
sxcept ona of aracteristics. In the niche of offshore and steel structures, the goal is to improve the

market position and contract new prejects through more pronounced marketing.

in 2020, Sradesplit strongly entered the rmarket of yacht construction and signed a letter of intent for the

construction of a megayacht and is in negotiations for 3 other projacts in the same segment.

A greater ncrease in profitabiiily will e achiaved by further recrganization and improvement of business
Rrocesses

Conclasign:

~ Brodospht d.d. proved in 2020 that it 2an buid the most complex vessels on time, with guality and
profit

- turned to a vary profitable segment of the construction of luxury sh ps and yachts in which it has
alreacy signect 2 letters of intent

- intensive work is being done on the employment of new labor force, both in the shipbuilding and non-
shipbu lding markets,

- warking an further improvements in the organization and productivty increase

5i@EliUpt;vd(o 0. and subsidiaries 0
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Management report (continued)

7. GROUP'S ACTIVITIES IN THE FIELD OF RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

On 20 Juiy 2019 DIV GRUPA do.o. started the reajisation project for an innovative screws
meanufacturing process in the area of Samober and Knin, named: “Research and development of new
junction efements” focusing on increasing cost-effectivenass, produst quality, and feasibility of delivery
deadlnes, thus enabling the Company to comply with market demands, The project worth a fotal of HRK
33.469,395.92 was approved by the Ministry of Econemy, Entrepreneurship and Crafts on 31 January
2020, and will be implemented by 20 July 2022. The total possibie amount of tax base reduction under
inis project is HRK 41,836.746.15, wxls the amount of tax relief that can be used within this project is
HRK 7,321,075.79, The project activities are performed in the area of experimental growth., The
expected project outcome is an innovative and advanced product:on process decreasing the production
time, improving the delivery dynamics in subsequent commercialization and increasing company
competitiveness, conforming with the standards defining the product and, ultimately, placing & more
accessivie and affordable product on the market.

The Coripany continues to implement experimental product davelopment as part of the project
"Research and development of new metalworking and welding positions” which, in the total
amount of HRK 15,105,424.56 | is approved by the Ministry of Economy Entrepreneurship and Crafts
on 29 May 2020. and will be implemanted by November 30. 2022. The total amount of tax pase reduction
for this project is HRK 18,881,780.70, and the tax relief that can be used within this project is HRK
3,398,720.53. The goal of the project is an inngvative, advanced, and significantly improved production
process, accompanied by a necessary reduction in production costs and duration in order to ncrease
the compatitiveness of products in foreign markets.

The project's eslimated outcome is an innovative, advanced and significantly improved produciion
process, with the necessary reduction of costs and production time. provided that the final products
meet the applicable standards.

The project "Development and research of new surface protections” was reported on October 5,
2020. to the Ministry of Economy and Sustainable Development. The projzct in the total amount of HRK
18,111,239.88 was approved by Ministry of Economy and Sustainable Development on January 29,
2021. year and will be implemented by September 30 2023, The otal amount of tax base reduction that
can be Jsed in this project is HRK 22,5392,049.85, and the amount of tax relief that can be used i this
project is MRK 4.075,028.97.

The purpose of the project is 1o improve he knowledge and existing tachnological processes of surface
protection witn the aim of developing a significantty improved protective layer on the connecting
slemants. gspecially in the context of refiability and reducing the fristion coefficient on the surfaces of
connecting elements on which the protective tayer is applied.

Div GRUPA d.o.0. and subsidiares
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Manngement report (continued)

Y. GROUP'S ACTIVITIES IN THE FIELD OF RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
{CONTINUED}

fhe wapected outcome of the project is innovative, advanced and significantly mproved technological
procestes of surface protection that meet EU and interhational slandards according to whicn the
fasteners are Jdefined and they have achieved a more reliable way of protecting the fasteners. Ukimately,
in this way, & more acceptable, funclional and sophisticated product, with significantly improved
charastenstics, can be offered to the market.

The projsct “Expansion of the capacity of the existing business unit and diversification of
production-wire processing and production of threaded rogs” started on Jung 3, 2013, and was
mplernented until June 3, 2016, i the Knin area. The project incluades an invesiment of buving and
aquipping a new plant, which will be used for the production of threaded rods, boits and other threaded
prod.ds. The project was appraved by Ministry of Economy and Sustainable Development on March
19, 2020 According to the approvel, the eligible costs amounted 1o HRK 46,924.206.00. The realized
amotnt of investment is HRK 28,292,300 .38.

DIV GRUPA ¢.0.0. initiated, it the area of Sibenik-Knin County cn March 15, 2018, investment projec!
nccording to the Law on investment Fromotion: "Expansion of production capacities - connactoers”,
The projact carries out infrastructure works and procures eguipment for the purpose of expanding the
production of connectors, Alse, as part of this project, the quality of the production of connectors is baing
mprovet, and the efficiency of production is growing on the basis of investments.

i acdition to research and development projects that using state aid, DIV GRUPA d.0.0. actively
participates in and uses European lunds for regional development and thus implements projects within
the Operaticnal Prograrm Competiliveness and Cohesion 2014-2026.

wDevitopment of the DIV elastic clip”, implemented in line with the Grant agreement with a =otal
project value of HRK 25,071,055.68, of which HRK 15,268,603,57 are funded by the Europear
Structural and Investment Fund In tne financial pericd 2014.-2020. ( Enhancing development of new
prodasts and services resuiting from research and development activities” — RDI stage 1). The
research and development project will be implemented in the period from 01.07.2018. to 01.07.2022.
with the aim of enabling the development of a functional and inrcvative DIV elastic elip and.
ronsequaently, its placement and tommaercialization on the world railway construction and mainterance
market. The project directly contributes lo ircreasing investmen: n research and development within
thiz Smart Specialisation Strategy (53, thernatic area "Transport and mobility” and sub-thematic
priorty area (STPA} 1. "Production of parts and systems of high added value for road and rail
vehicltes™, with an indicatve RDY topic. raad and rail vehicles of a higher added value. The project was

DIV GRUPA d.c.o. and subsidiaries 4




£y DIV

Managemaeant report {continued)

1. GROUP'S ACTIVITIES IN THE FIELD OF RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT (CONTINUED)

implemented in 2019 as a part of the industrial research conducted in cooperation with the Faculty of

Civit Engineering in Zagreb.

Jncreasing energy efficiency In the production facility in Knin ”, which is implemented in
accordarce with the Grant Agreement with a total project value of HRK 20,959,417.00, of which HRK
9,827.497 .65 are granis. The purpuse of the project is ta Increase ihe efficiency of energy use in the
prodaction process by using reactive energy, modernizing farge znergy consumers and reducing erergy
losses.

As & cortinuation of the efforts 1o achieve better energy efficiency with the aim of introducing measures
for the use of renewable energy sources, the Company competed with the project proposal BIV GROUP
- Sustainable Production at the invitation of KK.04.1.1.03 “Increasing energy efficiency and use of
renewahle energy sources in manufacturing industries™ and the project proposai was submitted on
08.02.202 1. The project proposal with a total value of HRK 45 566,118.84, of which HRK 19,993,861.90
are grants. is currently in the 3rd phase of evaluation. In addition to the savings that are planned 10 be
achiaved by reptacing obsolete machines and lighting, it is alsa planned to install a solar power plant
with an installed power of photovoltaic panels of 5,482 kWp, which will reduce the total delivered energy
to 7,122,349.60 kWh { year. COZ emissions will be lower by 2 350.38 1C02 / year.

Furthermore, the Company is planning to implement a project fram the Call for enhancing development
of new products and services resulting from research anc development activities ~ stage ! under the
‘Competitiveness and Cohesion’ operational programme of the European Regional Development Fund,
in cooperation with Brodogradevna industrija Splitd.d., Marine and Energy Solutions DIV d.o.0., Faculty
of Electrical Engingering, Computer Science and Information Techrology in Osijek, and the Faculty of
Elecircal Fngineering, Mechanical Engineering and Naval Architecture in Split. This is a project calied
“Development of 4 zero-emission passenger sail boat”, in line with Priority axis 1 Strengthening the
Economy through Application of Research and Innovation and in line with the Croatian Smart
Specialisation Strategy 2016-2020 and the follewing thematic priorily areas:

1. “Transport and mebitity” — sub-thematic priarity areas: Environmentally-friendly transpert systems
and Intefligent transport systems and logistics;

2. "Energy ang sustainable environmant” - sub-thematic priority areas: Energy technolegy, systems
and equipment and Environmentally-friendly technology, equipment and advanced materials.

The am of the project is to davelop eco-innovation in the form of a passenger sailing vessel This will

require werk on alternative propulsion technologies such as maximizing the use of renewable energy

DIV GRUPA d.0.0. and subsidiaries 3
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T.BRUUP'S ACTIVITIES IN THE FIELD OF RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT (CONTINUED)

sowines based on an envitonmerdally friendly design, gearsd towards sustainable zero-emission
inobilty. Achieving the project's ob eclives is planned in caoperation with scientific institutions, all with
the arn of improving the transfer of knowledge and technology between industry and higher education
mstituiions and public research institutes, which benefit both companies and researchers from e public
sector, The implementation of this project will provide knowladye and develop an innavative product
saating shig) that will enable the applcant and partners to be mare competitive in the glabal market of

Hesgn and construction of passenger ships (in the narrower sense, the market of small ¢ruise ships).

The naw product will stand out from the compaetition for its technologicat superiority which will uitimately
izad to a tinal product of higher quality and higher cost efticiency (both in construction and i service
life}. The project implementation pericd is from 17.02.2020. 4 17.08.2023. The iofal value of the Project
amount o HRK §2,779,547.09. The total eligible costs of the project amount to HRK 42, 520,975.46, and
yrante in the amount of HRK 18,913,221.79 are awarded.

A the same time Div GRUPA du.o. intends to participate a« a Pertner in the follamng drojec:s.
“Development of multi-purpose rescue and tourist submarines” and “Development of an
Autonomous unmanned mufti-purpose vessel” which have pussed all stages of evaluation and are
pending d.e to delays in the allecation of funds. Financing decisions are expected by the end of May
2021, when implementation activities an these projects wil be ntensified. Afl submitted projects are
nighly innavative with an empnasis on the development of advancad technologies in the field of naritime
ransport without adverse effects on the environment. The facus of davelopment lies in a functional
mnavative product of a mulli-purpose tourist and research submarine in the shipyard BRODDISPLIT-
BROVOGRADILISTE SPECHALNIH CBIEKATA d.o.o. (BSO), placement and commerciatization of
“his procuct on the world markel with the purpose of strengthening the market position of BSO shipyard
aser on submaring construction technology. and renewal of acquiced knowtedge and submearine
sonstuction that has been cemplelely neglected in the last 25 years. This research aims 1o develop a
tew, wery complex product thatss pardy the result of the applicaton of the latest globat knowledge and
sxifls, ard oartly represents a new step forward in the field of revearch and development The praduct
‘hat is the result of this resear™h s new for entrepreneurs and partriers, new for the national market and
the repon. and will include Croatia in the group of only a few countres that offer civihan submermes on
*he glabal market The project pariners a-e: Brodosplit - Shipyard « f Speciat Facilities d.o.o., DIV GRUPA
4.0.0. Marine and Enpergy Solutions DIV d.c.0. and the University of Zagreb, Faculty of Flectrical
=nginasering and Computing. The praject implementation pertod ic. from 29.06.2020. 1o 29.06.2123. The

SR GRUPA ¢.0.0. and subsidiares 10
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Management report (continued)

7.GROUP'S AGTIVITIES IN THE FIELD OF RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT {CONTINUED)

totat value of the Project is in the amount of HRK 55,052,642 14. The total eligible costs of the project
amount to HRK 44,522 022.01, and grants in the amount of HRK 29 673,177.57 are awarded.

Tha project "Development of an autonomous unmanned multi-purpose ship” aims to devalop and
demonstrate a multi-purpose vesset thal witl be capable of autenomaous or remote-controlled navigation
n real operational conditions, During the development, many unresolved technological challenges will
bhe addressed, with an emphasts on safety and reliability in navigation. which presupposes a fuily cyber-
pretected system. The multipurpose vessel is primarily planned to be used to mitigate the consequences
of potentied environmenta! disaslers such as oil spills into the sea or ¢ clean soiid surface waste, as a
firgfighting vessel that will participate in risky firefighting in maritime accidents while protecting the lives
of intervertion teams and increase firefighting efficiency. Tre project apphcant is BRODOGRADEVNA
INDUSTRIJA SPLIT d.d., and the project partners are: DIV GRUPA d.o.o. for services, Marine and
Energy Solutions DIV d.0.0. for services, Brodosplit - Brodogriditiéte specijainih objekia d.o.0. and
Univarsity of Zagreb, Faculty of Elestrical Engineering and Computing. This research aims to davelop a
new, very complex product that is partly the result of the application of the latest global knowledge and
skills and represents a new s'ep forward in the field of research and development. The product that is
the result of this research is new for entrepreneurs and partners, new for the national market and the
ragion anc will inchude Croatia in the group of only a few countrias that develop and offar autcnomous

unmanned technology in the global market.

The project implementation period is from 29.06.2020. to 29.06.2023. The total value of the Project is in
she amourt of HRK 53,727,223.80. The total eligible cosis of the project amount to HRK 44,397,154.35,
and grants in the amount of HRK 22,620.601.72 are awardad.

it is important to emphasize that research and development astvities are almaost entirely based on
axistirg competencies within tha DIV Group, i.e. that research and development activities, but also
commercialization activities gontinue on the existing busihess resources, organization and business
processes of the Company.,

Zmiploveas of the Brodosplit d.d. are continuously waorking cn the developmant and improvement of
axistng technologies and methods of work with the aim of achieving a competitive agvantage in the
market, The main goal of Bredosglit d.d. is to ensure revende and profitability growth by contracting
as many new buildings, ship sections and metat structures as possible. Brodosplit d.d. bucame a
recoynized shipyard for the construction of the most compiex ships. During 2019 Brodospld d.d. reported
wo research and developmen! projects "Development of an innovative luxury passenger threg-masied
sailing ship with low huil resistanse” and "Development of an innovative luxury research passenger

ship {or the polar regions with reinforced hull for ice navigation - polar code PC 6 "for the uze of

OV GRUPA 8.0.0. and subsidiares 1



Mairagement report (continued)

THROGUP'S ACTIVITIES IN THE FIELD OF RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT (CONTINUED)

siete aid according o the State Aid Act for research and development projects. The developirent of this

type of nnovative passenger ship with low consumption of fossit fusls during the navigation of the ship
thanks o the synergy of the functional system of sails and low resistance of the ship will enable the
shuavard Brodosplit d.d. streagithening competitiveness in the demanding passenger ship market.
inclusirial research on the project "Development of an inhovative luxury research passenger ship
fuy the palar regions with a reinferced hull for navigation en ice - polar code PC 6" wilt laad to the
initon of new knowledge and skills that will significanty improve the existing produst (this type of

5

ssgsger ship). The ship is an exiremely complex system, 53 th e tesearch will inglude the improvement
subsystems and assemb'ies, 2.g. ship's hull, prapulsion systam, dynamic posittoning and motion
wahilization, power system, control and monitoring system, air conditioning and ventilation systam, ship

o1, ete. During industrial rezearch and construction of the ship, all components of the sh.p wilk be

inspected by tests on the slipway amd equipment shore. In addition to students, Brodogradevne industrija
Split o.e. organizes professional nternships for studerts in cooperation with scientific institutions in Split
such a3 Faculty of Chemistry and Technology, Facuity of Electrical Engineering, Mechanical
Ergineering and Naval Architsciure University Department of Frofessional Studies and Faculty of
Economics in Split. About 20 students pass the professional internship every year. In the praciical part
of teasi*ing, mentors transfer thair knowledge, experience and skilis to students and thus help students
to connact theoretical knowledyde with practice. By finding ther student internshio and conansacting with
employers, students are offereo other oppertunities because professionat intermships can open the

paasitiifity of future employment.

SRODOGRADEVNIINSTITUT d.o.i,

On Jduly 3, 2020, Brodogradevni insutul d.o.o. was established in response to the growing c¢hallenges
pused Dy the global market criented 1o the maritime and teshnological sector, ali with the aim of
strengthening scientific research casaciies and introducing new lechnologies and imgroving production
prICasses.

Reszarch and development aclivities, along with cther activities refated to the introduction of irr:cvations
mn scoromic entities, are necessary for each individual sconomy to become more competitive by
mereasing the productivity of ecenomic entities, accessing new markets with higher added vaiue and
achizving sustainable employment n fierce global competiton.

e curent needs and potential assessment indicates that tie main obstacle to increasing private

mvas.ment in research and daeveloprent is the low level of innovatian capacity, low level ¢f the notential

[ty 3RUPA d.0.0. and subsidiar es I
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Martagement report (continued)

T.GROUP'S ACTIVITIES IN THE FIELD OF RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT {(CONTINUED)

for reséarch and development anc limited interest in cooperation between economic entities and
research organizations, In this segment. the Institute can be: a lusk that will direct ecucation (cutside the
astablished and rigid mecharisms of institutionalized education) on new achievements in praduction
‘procossing and processing techrologies, work organization. etc.) from the professonal-scientific

sphere lo ausiness entities ard their efrployees in production sacior,

Tha general goal of establishing the Shipbuilding Institute d.c.o. is to increase the quantitetive and
nuahiative contribution to scientific research through:
improvement of rescarch infrastructure
- intensification of cooperatic: with other scientific resaarcs institutions in the country a'1d abroad
in order to transfer knowledya and technology

- intensification of cooperatio 1 with economic entities in the country and abroad, development of
new products and technologizs, application of new knowledge and technologies in production
processes

- incraasing the level of knowiedge and competencies of eriployees in the shipbuilding industry
and marine technotogy $&c-or, as welt as in other reluted sectors

- interdisciplinary cormedticn with other engineering sectors {electrical enginearning, eisctronics,
aytomation, construction} in order to create an innovatior: patform.

- Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act and the Scientific Activity and Higher E2ducation
Act, the Institute is registerad in the court register of the Commercial Court in Split as a limited
liability company, and work :s underway to ensure the nacessary conditions for registration in the
Register of Scientific Fiesearch Organizations at the Ministry of Science and Educaticn of the
Regubtic of Croatia.

Profussional, administrative and support business functicns :re provided by using the services of
specialized companies and services within the Group through ¢z speration agreements for business as
‘oliows,

- financial and accounting affairs

- personnel and general affairs

- legel affairs

- informatics affairs

commercial affairs (procurement)

¥ ;UPA d.0.0, and subsidiar;s 13
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Wunagement report {continued)

LGROUP'S ACTIVITIES IN THE FIELD OF RESEARCH AND DIEVELOPMENT (CONTINIJED)

- guality management an cerification
- EU funds and consulting
laboratories

“bi existing structure of human resources and fiexible organszat onal structure in the Ingtitiste is in line
with the mission, vision of developrant and established strategic goals of the Institute. However. for the
lang term development of the Institute and the successful implzmentation of a five-year program of
scisntic research by thematic aress and the achievement of strategic goals, the organizatior s: structure
oF seientific research depariments at the Institute will be adjustac (o achieve the most effective coverage
af planned thematic areas,
Strategic program of scientific research of the Shipbuilding nst tute for the period 2021-2025 clearly
amphasizes the orientation of the Institute o applied scientific research, industrial development
reseacch, and related experimantal Jevelopment, Therefore, in ths coming period, the Institute will strive
o strangly support cooperatio with economic entities in the country and abroad. in additcn 1o the
above the cosperation of the {stitute with the business seator will be expressed through the activities

o° analysis and problem solving ad various forms of consulting activities that may be of interest to

ts. The idea is to make the (a5t tute a center thal, even in aily aticns where it will not k& able to offer
4 soludion on its own, will be & mediator in finding a solutat in cooperation with other exiernal
subcoritractors.
Tre research topics at the Instiute are harmonized with the Ei} development pricrities and with the
naticnal strategic priorities in science. The Shipbuilding institile would provide key suoopurt in all
zcigniific research projects in which group members would part ¢ pate, either as applicants or partners.
As part of the National Development Strategy 2030 (NRS 2030 program, the DIV Grous intends to
conttibute by participating in the following research projects
Development of Inteltigant Autenomous Mine Defensa Systems
- Development of mobiie muliifunctional logistics/distnbution navigable centers for tanrgcting
and revitalizing istands and coasts

- Development of a multi-purz0se coastal patrof vessel witn modular equipment cor.cepl

. Development of advancad coastal fransport systems (Sv/ATH vessels)

- Development of a netaork of small LNG floating plaris for storage and transfer of LNG in
Creatian ports

E;!“‘:‘TERUPA d.o.0. and subsidiar 2% 14



T

o E T

£y LIV

Management report (continued)

T.GHOUP'S ACTIVITIES IN THE FIELD OF RESEARCH AND [IEVELOPMENT (CONTINUED)

Projecis within the NRS 2030 program, by the Shipbuilding Instit.ste d.0.0., would be attendad by
scientific researchers whose 1vobvement in the projects was achieved through a contract on scientific
research cooperation.
in addition to the scientific research topics listed above, the instiute proposes the development of the
follow ng topics:
Augmented reality and digitalization as a coniinuation of the development of topics sta+ted
within CEKOM (assisted rewity in the ship equipping phase) and Horizon 2020 projects
{application of automated ! robotic procedures in pradiuction),
- Application of new and hybrid drive systems in (LN and H2, battery drives)
- Flpating wind power systems
Heating and cooling syslems in shipbuilding
Huil optimization by compuier simulations
- Development of smar: vessel management systems,
Development of innovative vessel equipment design procedures
- Investigation of vessel vibroacoustic properties
- Research of sailing systems for the purposa of bettar energy efficiency of wind
- Research and developmeni of welding, bending an:i an’i-corrosion protection technolGgies
applicable for the purpose of optimizing the technolpgical process of production
- Research in the field of materials and surface engineering

Innovative solutions in road construction

By parlicipating in the implemeniation of current and planned future projects, it is reasonable to expect
shat Brodogradevni institut d.¢.0. ensure sufficient employr ent of its scientific research capacilies, By
mtensiying its involvement in the EU, EEA and natienal ressarch and development projects, the
instituta plans to provide additional sources of funding and new opportunities for cooperation with
orher scientific institutions within the: European Research Area in order 1o jointly research selecied
topics, increase scientific productivity and scientific excellence Ivstitute in the domestic and

nternational scigntific environment.

DIV GRUPA d.c.0. and subsidiar s 15



4 anagement report (continued)
8. SUBSIDIARIES

5 bsitharies are detalsd i (e notes s the financial staterrents

5. INFORMATION OM THE PURCHASE OF OWN SHAKES

Tie Company does nol hays s own shares, nor did it havs a2y during 2020

Trnmislav{l qebeijak Darko Pappo
Thairman éafihe Board

T DE

Y

I Samobor, Seplamber 17 2 2 .

(1 GRUPA 0.0 and subsidic




ENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES OF .’\rl.&f\'.f\(.‘ii.\"ilz r

Bissed o9 the apphcable Croatian Actounting Act, the Managenienl £oard of DIV GRUPA d.o.o. (herainafler
eizred] 10 85 "the Group”) is requ ned '« ensure that the consolidaled financial statements for each hnarcal year
are prenared in accordance with Imen atonal Financial Reporing S andards (IFRS) adopted by “he European
Umon =2 a8 10 provide a trug and fair view of the financial position ang resulls of the Company's operitions for
that nenod.

Thie M: nagement Board has & reasarable expectation that the Group nas adequate resources (o contitue in
oparshional existence for the near futur For this reason. the Manugenwent Board continues to accepl (he going
curice'n principle when preparing e consolidated financial statemerns,

In pregaring those consolidated firancial statements, the Management Board is responsible for:

« the selection and consisten! apgtication of the appropriate accointing policies,

«  rgasonablte and prudent judger ents and assessnients,

v applying the applicable accoinving standards,

s+ preparing consolidate financia. statements on the going concerr principle.
The tanagement Board is responsidle for conducting the correct accourting records that will, at any time reflect
the firsat 1c1ai position of tha Group with ecceptable accuracy as well os the compliance of the consolidated 'manciai

stuteinents with the applicable Croatian Accounting Act, The Managemer| Board is also responsible to 5 feguard
the Gre up's assets and therefore for takivg reasonable measures 1o previ ' and defact fraud and other ilfégalities

Sigrec tor and pn behalf of the Management Board:

vor

Tonus!av DEb: flljak o 2y
F 028/

Rl e
O G0k e the

!
Wi Board

f VI
flﬁe‘Managgp"mrfr' “es Matiper
f Wmnagar

In Samcbor, September 17 2021
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Deloitte d.o.a.
ZagrebTowe™
Radnitka ¢2uts &IF

10 000 Zagreh

Croatia

Thx ID: 11686457780

Tel: +385 {0} 1 1351 900
Fax: +385 {0} 1 3351 999
vy delote

INDESEN{DENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the $w ners of DIV GRUPA d.o.c. and its subsidiaries

Cpinlon

We hav i o dited the consolidated financ 3l ttatements of DIV Grupa 6 .0 {“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the
Group"y, wrich comprise the consolidated s atement of financial position 2+ at 31 December 2020, the consolidated
staternen, of profit and loss and othet comprehensive income, conyolidaied statement of changes in equ ty and
saten statement of cash flows for thie year then ended, and nates to the consolidated financhal statements,
includiitg a :urmmary of significant accoLntirg policies.

Inour oping in, except for the possibie eMects of the matter describes in t e Basis for Qualified Opintor section of
our repnrt ~he accompanying conselidaten financial statements prasenc fai-ly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as at 31 December 202G, and its financial perforrsnce and its cash flows for the year then
endeq i ccordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union (IFRSs).

Basis for Qoalified Opinion

During 2020, the Group revalued property, plant and equipment in zccordance with the accounting relicy for the
subseqglien’ measurement of assets. For a part of property, plant and 2cuipment in the amount of HRE 142,726
thousand, we were unabie to ascertain the aisessment methods used, and during our audit we were unable to obtain
sufficlent ap propriate audit evidence <0 ass1ss the possible impact of the Lack of audit evidence. in acco-darce with
the abave, we have not been zble to determine whether, and to what extent, certain adjustments to the financial
staterasnts 3f the Group are reqguired

We cordhucted our audit in accordance with the Audit Act and Intarnational Standards on Auditing (154s). Our
respo-; bil Lies under those standards are lurther described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
consclitated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independznt of the Group in accordante with the
Internaticn:d Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Prafessional Accountants (IESEA Code) and
we have filfilled our ethical responsibiities in accordance with the IESBA Uade. We believe that the sidit 2vidence

we have ckiained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our gualified opinion.

This verswn o *he auditor's report is transigttor froem tie origingl, which was prepared e the Croetion languoge Al possible caie has Been token
toensure et be transtation is an accurate repretensiion of the ariginal. However, in it rati 2«5 of interpretation of informanon, utrws or
goiniens, the o iging! landuage verson of the repart 1 abes precedence over this transtat.an
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REFORT {continued)

Other tnlormation

Manpagerent is responstble for the other information. The other information comprises the inforrmation in<luded
n the Anrual Report, but does not includ2 the consolidated fina ncizt statements and our auditor’s reaort

Aur aginign on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information.

In Cor mection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
nfarmation and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materiatly inconsistent with the financial
statements of our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears 10 be materially misstated, With respect
to the Management Report, which is inc:uded in the Annual Report, we have alse performed the procedures
prescribed by the Accounting Act. These nrocedures include examining wriether the Annual Report includes the
required dischosures as set out in the Articie 21 and Article 24 of the Accounting Act.

Based nm the procedures perfarmed during our 2udit, to the extent we are able to assess it, we report thay

1. information included in the o:her information is, in all material respects, consistent with th2 attached
zcnsotidated financial staternemts;

2, T'he Management Report has been prepared, in all material respects, tn accordance with the Article 21
and Article 24 of the Accounting Act.

Saszd an rhe knowledge and understanding of the Group and its enyironiment, which we gained during our audit
of the corsolidated financlal statemnents, we have not identified material misstaternents in the other infarmation,
except far the possible effects described in paragraph Basis for Qualified Opinion.

Respansibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the consolidated Financial
Stataments

The tiaragement Board is responsible for the preparation and fair pre:sentation of the consoldatec fnancial
statements in accordance with 1FRSs and for such internal controf as M anagement determines is necessary to
2nahie the preparation of consolidated firancial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error,

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Management Board is responsible for assessing the
Groug's azility to continue as a geing concern, disciosing, as applicab e, matters refated to going concern and
usirg the going concern basis of accd 4nting unless the Management Board either intends to liguidate the Group
ar ta ceaze operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Thase charged with governance are respansible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

This versic ~ of the guditor’s repart is transiation from the original, which was prepared in tre Croatian language. Al possible core has been
token te ensure thot the tronslation is an acCurite representation of the ariginel, However, in off matters of interpretaion of mfermation,
views ar apitions, the onginal longuage versian of the report takes precedence over thys iranslation.
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INGEBE NDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

Auditpr's Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated Financial Statements

Our stiectives are to obtain reasonakle assurance about whether the consolidated financial statererts as a
whois a2 free from material misstatameant, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
inch-des our opinion. Reasonable ass.rarce is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that a1 audit
conigcto d in accordance with ISAs will abways detect a material misstaternent when it exists. Misstatemnents can
arise fron- fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or 11 the aggregate, they could reasanably
be ¢xpaced to influence the economis decisions of users taken or the basis of these consolidated  nancial
statemanis.

As past o an audit in accordance with '5As, we exercise professional judgement and maintain profess onat
scey ticisr s throughout the audit. We also

+ dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, wnether
fue to fraud or error, desigr: and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtair audit
wvidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basic for nur opinion, The risk of not sh21eeting 2
material misstatemnent resulting from fraud is higher than for onz resulting from error, as fraud may
-nvolve collusion, forgery, interit anal omissions, misrepresenial ans, or the averride of interisal control;

«  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the aucit in order to design audit procacures
"hat are appropriate in the trivrastances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinon an the
wffectiveness of the Group's inte-nal control;

«  Ivaluate the appropriatensss of accounting potlicies used and the reasonabieness of acuounting
wstimates and related disclosuras nade by Management;

v Conclude on the appropriatens i of Management's use of Lthe going concern basis of accounting and,
nased on the audit evidence chtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related ta svents or
s anditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's shi iy to continue as a going concern If we
< onclude that a materiat uricerta nty exists, we are required to ¢>aw attention in our auditor's report to
-he related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements ov, if such disclosures are iradeaguate,
W modify our opinion. Qur cor<iusions are based on the audit ¢vidence obtained up to the date of our
avditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
acing concern;

+ ovaluate the overall presertation, structure and content of 1ne consolidated financial statermnents,
neluding the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements reprasent the underlying
sransactions and events in a rmanner that achieves fair presentation.

»  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the @ntities or
husiness activities within the Group to express an opinion on t~e consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remamn solely
responsible for our audit optnicn

We Lormrmunicate with those charged w i1 governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any sigrifican| deficiencies in internal contral that we
idenzity cluring our audit.

Maiina TonZetic

Director and Certified Auditor
Deloitte c.0.0. [
Septsmber 17 2021 :
Radnidks casta 80

10000 Zagreb
Reputlic of Croatia

This versic - of the auditor’s report s transkoi:on jrom the onginal, which wos prepared in 12 Crogtian language. Al possible cci1e has been
tokes ty 28 ture that the tronsiation is on pccwa'e regresentation of the original How.zver, im olt matters of mterpretation of information,
vuiveg 37 pgmions, the onginagl languoge vers:<o 0f ‘he report takes precedence over thiy rror otion.




CO»Of IDATED STATEMENT (F PROFIT AND LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOWE FOR THE PERIOD ENDER 31 DECEMBER 2020

(in thousands of HRK) Note 2020 2019
Sales income 5 1,044,164 1,184 239
Other aperating income 8 94,802 74,968
Total eperating income 1,138,966 1,264,207

§ in inventories - work in progriss and 19 24.492 160,344

J goods

} costs 7 {517,502} (714,702)

5 8 {303,828) {312,187)

Depres ation cost 13, 14,15 {53.498) (47,822)
Other aperating expenses 9 (159,464} (200:,984)
Total operating expenses (1,009,800) {1,115,141)
Operating income 129,166 146,066
Finaricial income 10 43,164 14 058
Financil costs 11 {79,029} {92.021)
Net financial costs {35,876) {77 953}
Share i net income/(loss) of joint vanture 17 8 (96)
Profit before taxation 93,298 68.007
Corporase income fax 12 2,192 5.211
Not profit 95,450 73.218
Cther comprehensive income
Revaluation of property, plant and equipment -
and iniangible assets 60.521 23523
Reconciliation of minority interest 3,482 -
Changes in falr value of assets avatable for 16 5 33
sala
Effeet of changes in foreign exchange rates 650 561
Tetal gomprehensive income 160,145 107.434

Profit/(loss) attributable to:

Company’s shareholders 95,397 74 244
Nor-contralling interest 93 (1,026)
95,490 73,218

Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Compaty's shareholders 156,579 107220
Non-controlling interest 3,566 214
160,145 107,434

The ascompanying accounting policies and notes form an integral pat of these consolidated financial
statements,

DIV GRUPA d.o.0. and subsidiaries 21



CO 01 IDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS {41 DECEMBER 2020

{in -husands of HRK)

AGBETS

Nomn-yrrent tangible assets
Intaryinle assets

Pransry, plant and equipment
The nigi-t of use assets

Ny ment property
Otreririvestments

Inves ment in joint ventures
Nasi- srrent receivables
Deler-ar tax assets

Total non-current assets

Currsnl assets

Invial lor es

Trado and other receivables

Trady 1zceivables for construction contracts
Cach and cash equivalents

Prapic expenses

Tetal current assets

Total assets

EQU'TY AND LIABILITIES

Resarnves
Retained profit
esd year profit

equity:
Nt ontrolling interest
Tolal eguity

Non-zurrent liabilities

Liabilities towards banks and other fmancial
ingtitions

Provisiang

Deter-ed tax liabifity

Otter ron-current liabitities

Total pon-current tiabilities

Curranl liabifities

Liabilit'es towards banks and other F 1ancial
instittiors

Provisians

d other payables

sti axpenses and future ingere
Total current liabilities

Total kabilities

Total equity and liabilities

31 December

31 Deeember

Note 2020 2019
13 24,847 38,263
14 2,310,850 2,136 386
14a 1,277 330
15 4,448 3,636
16 454 451
17 16,780 8,078
18 2,538 3,839
12 8,843 6,700

2,369,837 2.206,274
19 590,994 458,419
20 139,193 201,443

20a 1,227,898 74,930

21 55,351 25664
8,497 25832

2,021,934 1.436,288

4,301,770 1. 642,562

22 245,737 245,737
23 420,997 381,428
22 1,106,098 1.697 375
23 95,490 73,218
1,877,322 1,797,758

1058 1176

1,867,878 1.804,934

24 218616 555 566
25 10,680 16,294
12 101,159 48,797
264 661,069 481,972
991,524 1.152,629

24 690,901 176,048
25 1,580 1,835
26 777,202 453,818
27 42685 43298
1,512,368 684,999

2,503,893 1.837,628

4,391,770 3.642,562

Taiz zocompanying accounting pol cies and notes form an integral part of these consolidated finarcial

statements.

JPA d.0.0. and subsidiaries B
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COWau L IDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
FO® THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

(@l arnsunts in thousands of HRK)

Profil irafore taxation

Adjustrnant for:

Ingome lax

Deprec ation and amertization

Impaiment of tangible and intangible assets

Net bouk value of written off propety, plant and

equipment
Sha loss of joint ventures

Financ at income/(expenses) - net
Otne- non-monetary adjustments

Charges n:

- rzde and other receivables
~invemiories

- Wrzde ard other payables

- provisions

Cash flow fram operating activities

Paid irterast
Paid corporate income tax
Net cash flow from operating activities

Cash flow from investmant activities
Argisie tion of property, plant and 2qu pment
Invesiments in joint ventures

Received loans and deposits

Profit payment

Net cash flow from investment activities

Cash flow from financial activities

Receipts from loans and horrowings
Repayments of loans and borrowirgs

Net cashy flow from financial activities

Net increasef(decrease) in cash and cash
equivalants

Casr and cash eguivalents at the big.nning of the

yaar

Caeh and cash equivatents at the ¢-i¢ of the year

Nate

12
13,1413

17
10,11

25

13,74

21

2020 2019
95,490 73,217
(2.192) (5.211)
53,498 47 622

3,810 2,271
14,788 23.138

(8) 89
35,875 74,852
(3.453) 2262

(437.193) (309,408)
(122,575} 116,207)
84,764 74.107
(5.869) 16,778}
(283,065) {75,244)
(101.312) {39,804)
(2.053) (96)
(386,430) (115,144)
{149,032 {114.827)

(693} 1954)

1,298 3121
(5,161) -

{153,588) {112,760}
784,061 62,704
(214.,357) (755 677)
569,704 (226,271)
29,687 11,633}
25,664 27.297
55,351 25,664

The accompanying accounting pehcies and notes form an integral pat of these consolidated financral

stalements.
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NO1es TO THE CONSOLIDATEL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOI 'THEE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

NOTE 1 - GENERAL INFORMATION
Histary and founding

DIV GROUP (“the Group”) comprises the parent company DIV GRUPA d.o.o., DIV Brodogradnja d.0.0.,
Brodaspliy d.d., Split and 69 subsidiar.ga, MIN DIV Svrilig a.d, TVIK 11V Valjeve d.0.0., DIV Betonski pragovi
d.o.p, IV Sarajevo d.o.o., Shangal Vida Industry & Trading CO.LTC., China, DIV Cruises inc. SAD. Tradewind
Voyages UK LTD, Efficient Powerful Sucessful d.o.c.. DIV Shipbuikiing Morway and DIV Ugiliste.

DIV GRUPA d.o.0. is registered with "rs Commercial Court in Zagreh under the Registration numb:r (MBS)
080127368, in accordance with the Companies Act. The core husiness aclivity of the Company is the
production of fasteners, screws, chaing and springs. In 2013, the subsidiary DIV Brodogradnja d.o.c. azquired
99.76% shares of the company Erodosplit d.d., Spht and the Group's business activity was éxtended to
shipteilding. The Group is headquartured at Samobor, Bobovica, 10/4, Croatia. The subscribed captal of the
Group arounts to HRK 245,736,800,

Tha founders and owners of the Group are Tomislav Debeljak, Visia Debeljak and Bozidar Debeljak.

Members of the Supervisory Board during the raporting period were as follows:

Namr Surname Function

Derijeln Debeljak President of the Supervisory Ecard

Viera Debeljak Yice President of the Supervisory Boarg
Members of the Management Boaid durirg the reporting petiod wer: as follows:

Name Surname Function

Tomislav Debeljak Chairman of the Management Board

Darko Pappo Member of the Mar zgament Board

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PREPARATION
(i} Staternent of compliance

Thage consolidated financial staterren's are prepared in accordance vath International Financial Reporting
Startards (IFRS), which were adopted by the European Union.

(i) Basis of measurement

These consolidated financial statemants are prepared on a histerical cost basis, except for some tangible
assals ard financial instruments, which sre presented in revalued amounts ar at their fair value as ¢ dis closed
in the accounting policies as follows. Historical cost is usually based on fair value of compensation given for
an asseat

(i) Functional currency and reporting currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in the Croatiar xuna ("HRK"), which is tte Croup's
functional currency, rounded to the nearest thousand.

fivi Going concem

Thase consolidated financial staternents have been prepared on the going concern basis, The Group's going
concar assessment was based on cash low forecasts which, in the Management Board's view support the
assarlon that the Group will have suficient resources to continue for a period of at least 12 months from the
reporting date. The preparation of lase forecasts incorporated a number of assumplions and signifcant
judgment. The Management Board concluded that the range of possible outcomes considered at artiving at
this jusgement does not give rise to material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast
sigrificant doubt on the Company's alzility to continue as a going coricem,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR 'THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PREPARATION {CONTINUED)

(iv) Soing concem {continued)

In twe pariod after the end of the businass year, after 31 December 2020, activities were intensifiec with the
aim of sacuring long-term sources of financing at the Group level. Thes2 goals have been partiafly achieved
through saveral activities started in 2020, and will be continued th-ough further activities in 2621.

Activil @s that began in late 2020, centinuad in 2021, relate to:

« approvial of HBOR's COVID loan in the amount of HRK 40,000,000 C0. on Decemper 23, 2020

« approval of a loan from Sbherbank in the amount of EURO 4,850,003 60, on December 22, 202(-
« approvial of COVID-loan of Podraysha banka in the ameunt of HIRK 26,000,000.00 on May 25, 2021

These placements represent long-tar sources of financing with ingrest costs ranging from 2 to 4% and
min:mal involvement of assels as coliateral. In the first few morths 9% 2021, current liabilities to financial
inst tutior s were settled in the total amount of HRK 38.5 million, thanks to strong growth in sales of screw
goods and a significant increase in the average price compared tc e previous year.

HBOR COVID loan was also realizzd in Brodosplit d.d. June 30, 2321, n the amount of HRK 250 rajllion with
an 'nierest expense of 2%. The secuity instruments are bills of exchange, promissary noles, rledge on
movalies, pledge on the ship "Goldan Horizon" and credit insurar-ce palicy. The loan will be used to finance
current operations and settie short-tarm liabilities.

In the izl few months, itis planned ‘o realize long-lerm financing ¢ “olden Horizon in the amaurt of up to
EUR 80 rnillion, which would be usad to refinance the the existing 3hort-term liability matusing on October 12,
2021. Negotiations are underway with saveral foreign financial instituticvs, and the timeframe is long) 2nough
to regotiate the most favorable opd en tor the Brodosplit / DIV Greup. I addition to the above aci vities, a
Tert wheet was received to refinance the existing long-term credit exposure of DIV Group d.o.o. under more
favorabla conditions, and a Term Sheet for the financial monitoring frarmr ewark of Bredesplitin the amount of
EUR 10wr. The implementation of these transactions will ensure an anpropriate maturity of financing while
reduc ng interest costs at the Groug kavel
Reg arsing business activities, in 2321 activities on previously cortracied projects continued {reconsintction
of the [Jugo Selo - Krizevci railway, stal patrol boats for the M rustry of Defense, Nov 485 for Ozsanwide
expaciions, Ston bridge and Prapratng viaduct). At the level of DV Group, new significant contrs
sigret such as the reconstruction of the Sirina intersection in Solin the construction of the Keneko tunnel,
reprir and partial refit of the ship ior Wateforce Yachting, compiet-on of the ship for Viterlef Manage nent -
totat v.2lua of more than 35 millian = o4 for all projects. Negotiations are underway for new projects as well.
Taking inlo account the above, the Management Board believes that the Company has sufficient hauidty in
relation to financial borrowing oppartunities to continue te openite in the foreseeable future, despite the
uncerainties in the economic envirsament. The Management Bea'd noncludes that the previously mentioned
and impiemented activities are satefictory, that the planned activities will be realized during 2021 and that
thete is no significant uncertainty risialec to the continuation of the Cormpany's operations.,

The Sroup considered potential ootions and alternatives, includitg, vul not limited to, sale of invartory of
finict ed praducts with a discount {stil: above purchase price) or sa'e of property to provide additiona! funds in
the st ort term, if necessary.

The Cravp responded in a timely manrer to the challenges o the Covid-19 pandemic, in &l busiiess
segmi s Conditions have been ¢ 1 for the safe continuator of production, 1n accordanz th the
mensties and recommendations s sompetent authorities, t1e suoply of key raw material; | #: been
ensarc. and a postponement of lxan ¢incipal payments has be::n agreed with financial nstitutio s for the
pernd v thin which market normalizat e s expected.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATEDR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEVIBER 2020

NOTE 3 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies adopted for the preparation of these consolidated financial staterneris ars set
out 2elow. These accounting policies weare used in a consistent manner for all pedods which form a parl ¢f these
slatarans.

3.1 Consolidation
{i) Subsidiaries

Sutsidianes are all entities over which the Company has the pewer 1o govern the financial and qperating
polizies. generally accompanying & shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights.

The existance and effect of potential veting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are consigered
when mssessing whether the Group nantrols anather entity, Subsid aries are comptetely consol<igsted from
the date on which the control was indeed transferred to the Groud and are excluded from the consclidation
from the rlate on which this control stops.

in consolidated financial statemens, all transactions within the Croup. as well as balances and unrealised
gains and losses from transactions within the Group are eliminated. \Where appropnate, the subsidiaries’
accaurting policies were amended i» arder 1o comply with the pel.cies the Group applies.

(i) Ansociales
Associatas are all entities over whch the Group has significant influence but not control, generally

accampanying a shareholding of banwesn 20% and 50% of the voling rights. Investments in assaciates have
bean nilally accounted for at cost and subsequently at cost reduc e by impairment recognized.

(i) Joint ventures

The Greup's shares in a jointly conimlied company are calculated by using the equity method, ana are indtially
recognised at cost. The equity methad requires the Group's share in profit and loss after acquisdion are
recognised in the profit and loss asceuni, and the changes in other comprehensive income after acguisition
are recognised in other comprehersive income. Total changes aler acguisition are aligned with the
investiment carrying value.

.z Foreign currency transactions
Transachons and balances in forefyn currencies

Fomign currency transactions are translated into the functional curency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the date of the transaction. Monstary assets and liabilities are translated into the functional cur-erey using
the exchange rates prevailing at the resorting date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
setferment of such transactions and fiorm the translation at year-end sxchange rates of monetary assets and
liah litzs cenominated in foreign currancies are recognized in the ncore statement.

Nor-manelary assets and liabilities are valued at historical cost ani #re not recalGulated at nevy exchiange
rates.

Nor-morietary assets and liabilities are translated into the funciional currency using the exchenge rates
prevading at the date of the transaution,
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NUJ# § FO THE CONSOLIDATED VINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOK I'{E YEAR ENDED 31 DECE WBER 2020

NOYE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CGONTINUED)
3.2 Foraign currency transactions {continued)

Fornigw: currency transactions

Gro.; nwemnbers

lterr; nicluded in the consolidated financial statements of each mernber of the Group are stated in currency
of 1ha pimary economic surrounding wh ere the Company operatis ‘functional currency). The consolidated
finacial statements ace presentad in the Croatian kuna ("HRK™, wnieh is the Group's functional cuirency.

Inccn -2 and expenses and cash flows of foreign operations were tiznslated into the functional currerey of the
Gro ;' yzing the exchange rate preva :ing atthe date of the transac jon .average exchange rate for thar month),
and .b.g¢t assets and liabilites are T anslated using the exchange rgtz at the end of year. Alf excliznge rate
differeees incured from this trang:at on are presented in a separate position in the principal.

3.3 Property, plant and eipiipment

Pronery plant and equipment are v ally recagnized at cost which -nciude the purchase price per supplier's
Invaize, customs and noen-deductib € taxes and all other costs that zan be attributed directly to the assmt's use
and wr the purpose for which it is nwenced. After initial recognitien. mngible fixed assets are state.l at their
revi:h, s amounts comprised of treir fair value at the revaluation dae less accumutated amortzalion and
ace 1v'ulated impairment losses. Fevzluation should be carried su requlardy enough so that the carrying
amits) it is not significantly different from the one that would be daterrined by establishing the fair vaive at
the w.a ance sheet date.

Sukteq.eent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recogn zed as a separate asse: tly when
it is pratrable that future economic e w:fits associated with the iterr wili flow to the Group and the cost of the
itern can be measured reliably. Al cthar repairs and maintenanza cosls are charged to the stataraent of
cormpral iensive income during the fir ancial period in which they ar: ncurred. The cost of replacament of
large 1ers of property, plant and e+ipment is capitalized, and the varrying amount of the replaixd parts is
dger g nized.

I

Lan ang assets under constructicn are not depreciated. Deprec.at an of other items of property, plant and
equiprent is cafculated using the sirzignt line method to allocate tr xi- cost over their estimated use'uf lives,
as falliws:

Buiidings 20-100 years
Treds, furniture and transport egupnent 10-33 years
Plints sing equipment 10-33 years

Thera ware ne changes in deprecinlic rates in 2019, Depreciation i: ¢aculated for each asset unii: i & asset
is LIy ceopreciated or its residual val.es if significant. The resiguar v :2).e of an asset is the estimalad amount
that w2 Group would currently optiin from the disposal of the assat. if the asset were aiready of e age and
in the -nadition expected at the end ¢f its useful life. The residual ralu: of an asset is nii if the Grau a expects
to iese B asset until the end of its physical life. Residual values und Lsefut lives of the operating as-els are
revizy.er and adjusted ¥ applicable 8 ¢ach reporting date.

In mas: e carrying amount of asss exceeds the estimated recoraiable amount, the difference s written-off
to the recoverable amount.
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NeFFES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DEC£:MBER 2020

NOQTE 3 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIE & {CONTINUED)
34 Intangible assets

I argible assets relate to T softvare and project documentation initially recognized at purchased cost and
arg sed at straight line basis over ity estimated useful life.

Afeer the initial recognition, project dosumentation is stated at theis 1 3valued amounts comprised of their fair
value at the revaluation date less accumulated amertization and accumulated impairment losses.

IT software and other intangible ausets are recorded at purchase vatue less the depreciation costs and
centingant accumulated losses due to assets impairment. Internally generated intangible assets, sxcluding
czpitalized costs of development. are not capitalized and are recognized as an expense in profit and toss as
incired. Useful life of an infangible asset is assessed as a finite or an indefinite.

In-argithe assets with a finite useful lifa is depreciated over the eslin ated useful life and is impaired i deemed
necessary. Depreciation period anid depreciation method of intargible assets with a finite usel.! life are
revigwsd at least at each reporting «Jate. Changes in the expectud usefil life or the expected paltern of use
of fu 4 e economic benefits included ir the assets are calculated by shanging the depreciation pariod and
matt od and are treated as changes in accounting estimates.,

Dept eciation expense of an intangilie assets with a finite useful life is recognized as an expensae in profit or
lass in aecordance with an intended use of the asset, An intangible asset with an indefinite use Ul lilz 15 not
arma tised, but is annually tested “or impairment either on individual basis or on cash generating L il bases.

35 Investment property

Inyastrment property mainly relates to flats that are held for long-ter rental yields or appreciation. Investment
prapery s treated as a long-term muestment unless it is intended to be sold in the next year and .1 buyer has
beer identified, in which case it is <lassified within current assets.

tryasitrnent property is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and provision for impairmient where
raqured. Depreciation is catcudated using the straightdine methed t allocate cost over estimated useful [He of
3% yoars,

Siibs aguant costs are capitalised on'y when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with «f wilt
flaw to the Company and the co:t can be measured reliably. Al ciher repairs and maintenanca <osts are
expensed when incurred. if an investent property bacomes owner-o soupied, it is reclassified to proparty, plant
ard eyuipment, and its camying amount at the date of reclassifizstion becomes its deemed tost to be
subaaguently depreciated,

5 Non-financial assets impairment

Agisets that have an indefinite usefir ! fe and are not subject of depraciatiaon (such as land or goodwill) aré tested
arsiLatly for impaiment. Assets that are subject to amortisation ard lepreciation zre reviewed for in pa rment
whenever events or changes in ¢rcimstances indicate that the caresing amount may not be recoveranle, An
impairmant loss is recognised for thi: amount by which the assets carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
armount. The recoverable amecunt is the higher of an asset's fair vaiue less costs 1o sell and valus in Lse. For
the puracses of assessing impairrnent, assets are grouped at the owest levels for which there are: ¢ 2parately
identifizble cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suifered an
impairrent are reviewed for possible reversal of the impaiment at e vt reporting date.
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NO 1.5 TO THE CONSOLIDATED #1INANCIAL STATEMENTI'S
FO1 1HE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

NOTE 3 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
37 Financial Assets and liabilities

.l assets and financial lisbi4ies are recognized in the statemant of financial position of the Group
the: Group bacomes party to 'he contractual provisions of (he instrument.

Finencal assets and financial lab llies are initially measured at ar value. Transaction costs thal san be
attributed directly to the acquisition ¢’ issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other thna financial
assuts and financial liabilites meauured at fair value through profit or loss) are added or deducted from the
fair vaiue of financial assets or financis! liabilities, as required, at injtizd recognition. Transaction cus:s direcily
attributatle to the acquisition of firarcial assets or financial liabililies at fair value through profit or loss are
recoqrized immediately in profit or ioss,

€ or sale of financial assets or: 4 straight-line basis is recognizad on a trading date. Regulay purchases
a3 purchases or sales of & finarcial asset that requires the detivery of the asset within the lirme frame
establiswad by the regulation or précice on the market,

All racogrized financial assets are subsaquently fully measured at amortized cost, at fair value through other
comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss. deperding on the business mocel and the
chasactenstics of contracted cash fows.

{d)  Classification of financial assets
Dettinslruments that meet the follvasng conditions are subsequenlly measured at amortized cost
+  Financial assets are held witrir a business modet whose pu-pese is to hold a financial asset for the
purpose of collecting contrzctuil cash flows; and

»  Uontractual terms of financial assets cause cash flows that are solely the payment of principal and
interast on the remaining & mount of principal at certain dates.

‘1) Amcrtized cost and effoct’ve interest rate method

The aftactive interest rate method s ke method of calculating the amortized cost of a debt instrument and
allocatng interest income over the rolevant period.

For firarcial assets other than purchased or originated credit-impaited financial assets (Le. assels that are
credi-impaired on initiat recogniton,, the effective interest rate is tha rate that exactly discounts estimated future
casl) rece pts Gincluding all fees and po n°s paid or received that form a- integral part of the effective inlerest rate,
transacion casts and other premiums or discounts) excluding expested credit losses, through the expecled life
of the deblinstrument, or, where apprapiate, a shorter period, 1o the g carrying amount of the dabt instrument
i racegnition. For purchased ur originated credit-impaired finizncial assets, a credit-adjustsd effective
intarast rate is calculated by discountng the estimated future cash fiows, including expected credit losses. to the
amartiad cost of the debt instrumert ¢ 1 .nitial recognition.

The amodised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the finan; il asset is measured at initial recognition
minus the principal repayments, plJs the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest me'hed of any
differer ce between that initial amounl ard the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss allowance. The gross
carrying amount of a financial ass#! 15 the amortised cost of a finarcial asset before adjusting for any loss

allowanse.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

NOTE 3 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.7 Financial assets and liabifitics (continued)

Interes| income is recognised using Lhe effective interest method for detit nstruments measured subs equantly at
amortised cost and at FYTOCL,

For firzrcial assets other than purchased or originated credit imgaired financial assets, interes! income is
calcaliied by applying the effective ntarest rate to the gross camyiny g-rount of a financial asset sxcept for
finanaial assets that have subsequently hecome credit impaired.

For financial assets thal have subsequerdy become Gredit impaired, irterest income is recognised by applying
the offeciive interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If, in subsequent reporting periods, the credit
risk on the credit impaired financial insirument improves so that the firnarcial asset is no longer credit impaired,
interest income is recognized by apply 11y the effective interest rate t the gross carrying amount of the financial
assed,

For purzhased or originated credit-irmpaired financial assets, the Graun recognises interest income by apalying
it-aidjusted effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the: financial asset from initial reco yr tion, The
n does not revert to the gross hasis even if the credit risk of toe financial asset subsequently improves
so thal the financial asset is no longs- redit-impaired.

IMaiest income is recognized in the fcomne statement,
(¥} {mpairment of financial agsels
Tha Group recognises a loss allowen:2 for expected credit losses on mvestments in debt instrumsnts that are

measured at amortised cost and frade receivables. The amount of nxpecled credit losses is calculzatad it each
repartyy date to reflect changes in credit risk from the initial recegnition of an individual financiaf instrurnent.

Tha Gruup always recognizes Hfelong tradit losses (ECL) for trade tacehables based on the selected sirmplified
approach. Expected credit lesses or these financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix crealad

basis of historical experience of the Group in terms of credit lossi s, aligned with factors that are
borraviers. The Group does not currertly align the rate of loss for fulure racroeconomic conditions siro
not zornducied an analysis of the impact of macroeconomic factors on historical losing rates, Including the nme
valuz of the maney where appropriate.

Howsar, if the credit risk on the financizl instrument has not increased significantly since initial recag aition, the
Group reasures the loss aflowance for that financial instrument 3t sin amount equal to 12-month ECL. Lifetime
ECL represents the expected credit losses that will result from all passisle default events over the expacted life
of a fnancial instrument.

In covtrast. 12-month ECL represen!s the portion of lifetime ECL thal is expected to result fram defauil zvents on
a fir ane-al instrument that are possitle witnin 12 menths after the reparting dats.

Sigrufizant increase in credit risk

Ir. sgssmssing whether the credit rsk on a financial instrumen: has ncreased significantly rince initial
recugeition, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring ¢ 1he financial instrument at the reporting
date: with the risk of a default occurnng on the financial instrument at the date of initial recognition. kit making
this assessment, the Group consiters both guantitative and gualitative information that is reagorable and
supportable, incluging historical excerience and forward-leoking nfermation that is available withoutl undue
flort. Specifically, the Grou. “elies on due days in evaluating significant credit risk deterioration. if the
dablo is late for more than 360 davs, than the Group assumes a vignificant increase in credit risk.
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NO 1 £s TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FO;L 1HE YEAR ENDED 31 DEC EMBER 2020

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.7 Financial assets and liabilith:s {continued)

:
reps rt g date A financial instrument is determined to have low cr: adl ris < H:

s The financial instrument has a low risk of default,

+ The debtor has a strong ciipacity to meet its contractual tash flow obligations in the near tarm, and

«  Adverse changes in econgir iz and business conditions in the lunger term may, but will mat
necessarty, reduce the ab.lity of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.

However the Group does not curierdly use a simgplification of low credit risk when assessing @ significant
incragse in credit risk. The Groug: regularly monitors the effectivensss of the criteria used to detgmine
whetrzr thare has been a significart incraase in credit risk and rovises them to ensure that the riteria can
identify 8 significant increase in credit risk before payment delays acour.

Defiritior, of default status

The roup considers the following @5 constituting an event of dofiuult for internal credit risk manage
purneses as historical experience indicates that financial assets tha: meest aither of the following criernia are
genarnily not recoverable:
+« when there i a breach of financial covenants by the debtor; ar
« nformation developed intesnilly or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
w pay its creditors, including the Company, in fuli {withoui takirg into account any collatéral keld by
<he Company).

Irres;
thar !
mors

slive of the above analysis, the G3roup considers that default has oocurred when a financial asset is more
(C days past due unless the Greup: has reasonable and suppartable information to demonstrale “hat a
ging default criterion is mort adpropriate.

Cra:ii ‘mpairment financial assets

A financial assetis credit-impaired wher one or more events that have a detrimental impact on thit estirmated
future sash flows of that financial asset have occurred, Evidenca 1hal a financial asset is cretit-impaired
inchudes observable data about the fallowing events:

« significant financial difficutly of he issuer or the borrower:

« 2 breach of contract, such &3 a defaull or past due event [ses above);

« ihe lender(s) of the borrowar, for economic or contractual ~easons relating to the borrowe™'s financial
difficulty, having granted 10 the Borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) would no™ ctharwise
consider;

« 1lis becoming probable thit! the borrower will enter bankmiptcy or other financial reorgan sstion. or

« the disappearance of an aslive Market for that financial 830t because of financial difficutties,

Wring-off nolicy

The Group writes off a financial ass:! when there is information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
diffiulty znd there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the sdetzor has been placed unde liguidation
or h3g entered into bankruptey proe2dings, or in the case of trade receivables, when the amourts are over
thres yzars past due, whichever oot s 500ner. Financial assets written off may stil be subjectto enforcement
under the Company's rect/ery pracedures, taking into acecount legal advice where apprepr.at. Any
recoveists made are recognised in profit or loss.

Meas.ikuy and racognizing expectad cradit josses

Mezsurernent of expected credit lnsses is the function of the prazabiity of default (PD), loss gi#en default
(LG, i . the magnitude of loss ii there is a default and exposure o default (EAD). An assess nent of the
protabitoy of default and loss give™ defaudlt is based on the histerical data and information providad in the
preceding paragraphs. As for the srocsure at default, for financ zl assets it represents the gross carrying
ameunt uf the asset at the reporting date. For estimating PD and L3D parameters, the Grodr relies on
publizabions of external investment raling agencies.

o
L]
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NO{ES T0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOIR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

NOTE 3 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
37 inancial assets and liabilities (continued)

For financial assets, the expected cradit Ioss is estimated as the ditfarence between all contractual cash flows
that mature in accordance with the contract and ali expected casn #ows discounted at the original effective
‘a5l rate. If the Group measure the provision for expected credit lasses for a financiat instrumen: n the
CL in the previous reporting period, but on the current repo ng date it determines that the lifelong
ECL conditions are no longer met, the Group measure a foss in the amount of an equivalant 12-manth ECL
to the current reporting date, excest “o- assets for which a simplilisd approach (customer receivables) was
usad.

The Grous recognize an impairment loss or loss in the income statement for all financial instruments with an
appiepriate adjustment of the carry-ng 2mount thraugh the provision of provisions for expected loan losses.

Tenrination of recognition of finand iz 4 ssets

The Group cease to recognize financial assets only when contractusl rights on cash flows expire or when it
sfers financial assets, all risks 816 rewards associated with ownership of financial assets on arother

If thiz _cmpany does not transfer ar ¢ substantially discontinues all tha risks and rewards associated with its
owrzr:hip and continues to contred e transferred assets, the Company recognizes its refained i-tersst in
the azssat and the related obfigation to the amounts that it may have to pay. If the Company retains all
sighifivanl 1isks and rewdrds assouiated wilh the ownership of the trar sferred financial assets, the Company
coniinLes 1o recognize financial assets and also recognizes the recevend coflateral for received assets.

In fhe event of a discontinued recognition of financial assets measured at amerized cost, the difference
between the carrying amount and the amount of received remunaration and receivables is recognzted in the
incorne statement. Furthermaore, at the end of the recognition of an investment in a debt instrumen! measured
by ¥VQED, the cumutative gain or lass previcusly accumulated in tre ravaluation reserve is reclassified to
profit or loss, with the exception of 20ty instrurments for which the FVOSD option is selected.

Loans and receivables

The Group always provides for the losses from receivables in the armnount equal to life-long ECL. Expected
cretit ioyses on trade receivables are estimated on the basis of nmistorical data, taking into account the
histnrical experience of the debtors defaulting status and the currenl financial position of the tlebtar. The
Group has recognized a 100% loss on all receivables that have matured over 360 days, and which were
shawn & imecoverable by an individual assessment of the financial position of the debtor. There ware no
chasn i valuation techniques or significant assumptions during the current reporting period,

Tha G-pup writes off trade receivabies when there is information incicating that the debtor is in severe financiat
difficutty and there is no realistic prospes! of recovery, e.g. when tha righor has been placed unde: liguidation
or has entered into bankruptey procesdings, or in the case of trada e ables, when the amaournts are over
three years past due, whichever otcurs sooner. Since the Group's historical credit loss experience d
show sigrificantly different loss pat:erns for different segments of the customers, maturity-based wmpalrmenl
provisions do not differ between the: different customer groups of the Group.

at
e
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NG 1n TO THE CONSOLIDATER FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
_thl.m’[-m YEAR ENDED 31 DEC EMBER 2020

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.7 Financial assets and liabillliss {zontinued)
Fingial habifities

Fingaz at liabilities are classified as finarcial liabilities at fair valua through profit or loss or other financial
liab ftizs. The Group has no financial liabilities classified as fair value through profit or loss.

Cthsr fnancial fiabilities
Othr fir

Othar financial liabilities are subsecuently measured at amortizer: cost using the effective interesl method.
with interest expense recognized ¢1 un affective yield basis.

ancial liabilities, including 'oans and borrowings, are initially vaasured at fair value less ©

The efective interest rate method represents a method used fo- caleulating the depreciated cost of the
finarcial hability and distributing the interest expenses throughout the relevant periad. The effeclive interest
rate ¢ the rate pursuant to which the estimated future cash flows e ¢iscounted during the expected lifetime
of th« “inancial liability or, where applicable, during a shorter periar.

Eng of firancial liabiity recognition

The Group derecognises financial tatilines when, and only when the Group's labifities are paid, cancelled
of & pi el

38  Government grants

Government grants are recognized when there is reasonable ass.iranze that the Group wili comply with the
termis attaching fo it and that the grant wilt be received. Consscuentdy, the Group does not ricognise

et grants until there is redzonable assurance that the Greup will comply with the conditions atlached
and that the grants will be '/ sived.

Government grants are recognized n profit or loss on a systemati: sasis over the periods required to rmatch
ther with the related costs, A govirrment grant that becomes reveivalile as compensation for expenses or
tosses already incutred or for the jurgnse of giving immediate financial support to the entity without future
relatad costs shall be recognized in profit or loss for the period in wrich the receivable was creal=il. Grants
relatec! 1 the depreciable assets ere recognized in profit or loss cver the periods and in the predortions in
whicn the depreciation on thoge ascels is recognized. In the statemenl of financial position. the government
gran: is recognized as a deferred (ncome that is recognized in profir or loss on a systematic bat & cver the
useill iife of the asset.




NOTLS TO THE CONSOLIDATER FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DEC EMBER 2020

NOTE 3 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED}

39 Leases

Policy vafid from January 1, 2019

Wiwn concluding a contract, the Gioup assess whether the contract 1s or contains lease characteristics That
ssess whather the contract transiers the right to control the Lse of the property in questior over time
in &xchange for compensation.

i. Gruup as lessor - finance lease

The tessar's accounting for finance leases remains largely unchar ged from the requirements of 1AS 17.

il. Group as lessor - operating lease

Leases in which the Group does not transter substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership aiz classified
as r.oerating leases. Lease incoma: 15 recognized on a straight-lne basis over the term of the lease and,
becal se of its business nature, is included in income in the income stalement, Initiat direct costs incured in
ting and arranging an operaling lease are added to the casrying amount of the leased asss! and are
y7ized over the term of the lease 1:n the same basis as the leass income. Contingent rents are racognized
as ingume in the period in which they are earned.

il (irout as lessoo - oporating loase

3¢,

For all Ieases, except short-term teasas and leases of low-value avssis, the Group applies a single approach
to recognition and measurement. The Group recagnizes lease paymerls and the right to use the asset, which
is the: 1" ght to use the asset in question.

Assats with the right of use

The ZGroup recognizes assets with the right of use at the time of corcluding the lease agreemen: (v.2. at the
time whan the subject property is avariable for use). Assets raceivabie are measured at cost less accurnulated
depreciation and impairment losses and are adjusted for remeasu-e=ernt of lease obligations. The cost of an
assi? used includes the amount of recognized lease obligations, initizi eirect costs and lease payn i2nts made
on or belare the date of the contract, less any lease incentives receved. Assets with the right of use are
depraciated on a straight-line basic aver the term of the lease.

Lease ahiigations

When entering into a lease, the Group recognizes lease obtigatiors, measured at the present value of future
\eate payments over the term of the lease. Lease payments include fixes payments (less all incentive claims),
variable payments that depend on 2n index or rate, and amounts that are expected to be paid or a resdual
valun guarantee basis. Lease payirenls may include the value of & purchase opiion that is expscad to be
exercised with reasonable certainty 810 the payment of a penalty for te-minating the lease, if the 1erms of the
conlras provide fos a termination ot on. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an indey. or rate are
recoy-izad as an expense in the paicd in which the event or condition that conditions the payme it ocours.
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NO k> ') THE CONSOLIDATEDR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOit THE YEAR ENDED 31 DEC EMBER 2020

NOTE 3 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ((HONTINUED)

39 Leases (continued)

Pohzy applicable before January 1, 2002

Lease : are nitially classified as finarce leases or operating lease: .

i. Gronip as lessor - finance lease

< invwhich the Group, as lesstr Iansfer substantislly all the ruks and rewards incidental to cwnarship
- are olassified as financ: e 5. When assets are leasod under a finance lease. the pr'aen: value
15€ payment is recognized as a receivable {within loars and receivables from custo ne The
differerice between gross finance !eas2 receivables and the preszrt value of future collections ¢f finance
ivables represents ungitced finance income. Initial o eot costs incurred 10 negoiating and
arraryging 4 finance lease are addid ¢ the carrying amount of th: eased asset and reduce the 2 rnount of
reven g 1gcognized over the tenm o' The lzase.

il Grovug as fandiory - gperating leesé

Lea 1 which the Group does nit rransfer a significant portion of has risks and rewards of ownership are
clas-if 11 as operating leases, Lease nocme is recorded as realizas on the basis of contractual Izase lerms
in Ciher nperating income. Initial dirzcl ¢ osts incurred in negotiating o erating teases are added to e carrying
ame.g b of the [eased asset and ar recognized over the term of 1ha lazse on the same basis a5 tha lease
incerne . Dontingent rents are recognizedt as income in the period - vinen they are earned.

i Groun & lessee - operating leats
Lean
leagr

bas
are

rat do not transfer substantiay all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group ar? ogarating
. Operating lease paymeants are racognized as an expense -n the income statement, on a @ iriaxghi-line
er the term of the lease. Guntingent rents are recognized 2z g1 expense in the peried in wihich they
tl, Jrred.

3.10 inventuries

Inventories of raw fnaterials and spare parts arg stated at the lower of cost, determined using the weighted
average method, or net realisable value. The cost is determined using the weighted average rmeshod and
inchizee the cost of bringing invenicry to their existing focation and current condition. Net realisable value is
the issi-mated selling price in the ordinary course of business. less applicable vanable selling expihtes.

The cost of work-in-process and firished goods comprise raw matenals, direct labour, other direct costs and
relarect praduction overheads (bastd on nermal operating capacit. ).

Raw, malarials and intermediate goods are valued at cost, using tne weighted average method. The cost of
war i pregress and finished goods includes raw materials, direc: labor costs, other direct cos's and the
relates part of general production costs (based on normal regular produ ction capacity). Spare parts are valued
at the lower of cost and net realizafte velue.

The value of inventories that have a slow turnover and are obsolzte is reduced by the profit or l0ss for the
current year.
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NOTE 3 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.11 Construction contracts

Cort-azt costs are recognised when incurred. If the outcome cannot be astimated reliably, contrzic: revenue
should be recognised onfy to the extant that contract costs incurren are expected to be recoverable.

Whe:n the nutcome of a construction roniract can be estimated reliably and itis probable that the contract wilk
be prefitabile, contract revenue is recognised over the petiod of the contract. When it is probable that total
contract costs wilk exceed total contract ravenue, the expected loss is “wcognised as an expense immediately,

oup uses the percentage-of-tomptetion method to determine the appropriate amount of revanae and

: lo recognise in a given period. The stage of completion iz measured by reference to the contract
Jrred up to the balance shzel date as a percentage of total nstmated costs for each conlrazt Costs
incurrad in the year in connectior with future activity en a conirat are excluded from contracl costs in
deteumining the stage of completicr:. Costs are presented as inveniories, prepayments or ob1e7 assets,
depanding on their nature.

Far zll angoing contracts whera the costs nourred and recognized gains {less any recognized losses | exceed
the zimoLnts accrued, the Group's gross amounts receivable fram the counterparty are stated ss assets.
Gradually charged amounts not gaid by the customess and ielained amounts are reported trade
receiv.ables ang other receivables. Fur all ongoing contracts where the gradually charged amouris exceed
incurred and the recagniied gaing (Jess any recognized lesses), the Group's gross amount, of the
to the counterparts is state¢ as a kability.

liaoility
312 Cash and cash equivalens

Casl ard cash equivalents compi se cash, demand deposits anc ather fiquid short-term instrerents with
matirity dates up to 3 months,

3.13 Subscribed capital

The sutscribed capital is stated in 14RK at nominal value.
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NOTE 3 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.14 Corperate income tax

The Campany provides for taxation linbilities in accordance with Craatian law and regulations.

Profi or 10as for the year includes cuirent and deferred tax. Income ax is recognized in profit or icss except
fo the: extent that it relates to items recognized directly to equity, in which case il is recognized in equ fy.

The cur-ent tax represents the estirnated @x lability calculated for tha taxablte amount of income for the year
pursuant to tax rates valid on the rep2iting date and ait corrections of the amount of the tax liability for pravious
pertds.

Defi~ed lax is provided using the bzlunce shaet liability method, pruviding for temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets anc lhabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amouns used for
taxativn purposes. The following ternporary differences are not provigaed for: the initial recegnitior of assets
or habilives that affect neither accouniing nor taxable profit, anc differences in relation to investrngnts in
subsaliares as far as they will liko'y not reverse in the foreseeuble “uture. No temporary differz 1tas are
receqr ad on the initial recognition of goodwitt. The amount of deferrud tax provided is based on the uxpecied
marrier of the realization or settterrent of the carrying amount of asses and liabilities, using tax rates enacted
or substantially enacted at the report »g date.

A dafered tax asset is recognizel only to the extent that it is prosable that future taxable profits will be
ava:laiie against which the asset car be utilized. Deferred tax assals are reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that the refated tax senef.

t will be realized.

3.14 Trade and other payatias

Trarsz and other payables are recaiynised initially at fair value and subsaquently measured at amoised cost
usir g the effective interest methad

316 Borrowing costs

Borowings are recognized injtiafy at fair value, nel of trarsaction costs mcurred. Borrow ngs are
subsacuently stated at amortized wost, any difference between the proceeds of the transactor and the
rederprion value is recognized in tin stalement of comprehensive income over the pericd of the teirowings
usir g the effective interest method

Bar:owri g costs that are directly att-ihutable to the acquisition, consiruction ar praduction of qualifying assets,
whii h are: assets that necessarily ke a substantial time to get ready for their intended use or sal®. iorm part
of the cost of that asset,

Revzpues from investment of borcwings before ther use are aredited from borrowing costs ehgible for
capitalization.

Othar borrowing costs are recogniies as an expense.

Bor:owiwis are classified as currer? liabiliies unless the Group ha; ann uncenditional right to defer setilement
of the: | ability for at least 12 manths #ftar the repotting date.

=
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NOYE 3 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

397 Employee benefits

(&) Fension obligations and post-employment benetits

In the normal course of business thraugh salary deductions, the Group makes payments to mandatory
pensian funds on behalf of its employees as required by law. All conir butions made to the mandatoy pension
funts are recorded as salary expense when incurred.

{6}  Redundancy benefifs

Recurdancy benefits are payable wihwin employment is terminated by the Group before the norma ratirement
date, or whenever an employee acepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Group
reccq)isas termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed o aither terminating the emplayment of
curtant empioyees according to @ detsiled formal plan without possibility of withdrawal, o prowiding
terminaticn benefits as a result of un offer made to encourage vol.m:ary redundancy. Benefits talling due
mare than 12 months after the batarie sheet dale are discounted i thair present value.

3.18 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or zunstructive obligation as a result of past
avents; il is more likely than not thal an outflow of resources wifl be equired to settle the obligatinn, and the
amciiot has been reliably estimater!.

Wheste there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood thit an outflow will be reguired in suttlernent
is determined by considering the class of cbligations as a whele. A provision is recognized gven if the
tiketithiood of an outflow with respect te any item included in the sarre class of obligations may be small.
Provig-ons are measured at the prasent value of the expenditures sxpected to be required to settle the
obligauan using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time vatue of moriéry and the
riskss spacific to the obligation. The increage in provisions due to the passage of time is recognised as interest
expsrse. This increase is stated ar an ‘nterest expense,

ur
R
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NO 11 3 TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOit | HE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

NOTE 3 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED}

3.1 Revenue recognition

Revinue comprises the fair vajue of 1ne consideration receivec or aceivable for the sale of goods and
senisng I the ordinary course of the Ciroup's activities, Revenue s shown net of value-added tar rebates
and d socounts.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can ke refiably measured, it is probable that
future accnomic benefits will fiow o the entity and specific criteria for zil activities have been met, as described
belewy

t) Sales of goods

Sales ol gaods are recognized when the Group has delivered pragiicts to the customer, the cust>mer has
accaptec the products and the collestatiity of the related receivates is reasonably assured.

(i Services

The Sraup generates revenue from the provision of services. Reaveiue from the provision of the service is
accounted for in order to incur & less and in accordance with the (ul:s of "IFRS 15 Revenue from Gonrltracts
with Justomers”,

Especialiy:

+ if the performance obligat:on is met at a particular paint in time (“at the time”), the ralatzd revenue
15 recognized in the account in arder to incur a loss when the service is provided,

» i the performance obligation s met over time, the related revenue is recognized in the ascount to
incur a loss to reflect the prayress of that obligation.

If the liguidation schedule is not in fin2 with the manner in which rha serformance obligation has bizen met,
the Graup calculates the contractiys: issat or contractua! obligation for & portion of the revenue gensarated in
that per.od or for a deferral in subseguent periods.

{iii} Ruvenue from construction coliraels

Revarug from construction contracls consists of initially agreed amount increased by deviations from
conts d work, complainis and alhw” incentives when it is probabls that the contract will be profitable and
the a1 ill be measurable. Whe! the cutcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably, contract
revenia and expenses related to the construction contract are recognised as revenue and experses, based
on the percentage of completion.

Percentage of completion is valued basad on an overview of work done by the reporting date. Vwhan the
outconte of a construction contract cannct be estimated reliably, cortract revenus is recognised onty to the
exterst of contract costs incurred, wricl are likely to be recoverable. Expected lass from a constructon contract
is recognised in the profit or loss i mexdiately.

(iv) Financial fncome

Finen: a! income includes interest on invested funds, and changes in the fair value of financial essets and
fore ¢ exchange gains. Interest inc ame is recognized on a lima-share basis using the effect ve interest
methad,

{v) Dividend income

Divide-d income, 1.e. profit sharing, 15 recognized when the sharsholder's right to receive the dividend is
voted provided that the inflow of economic benefits to the Group 15 probable and thal the incore can be
mezguad reliably.
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NOTE 3 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.20 Value added tax

The Tax Authorities require the settlament of VAT on a net basis. VAT related o sales and purchases is
recogisad and disclosed in the balance sheet on a net basis. Whare a provision has been made for
impairment of receivables, impairmerd kiss is recorded for the gross amount of the cebtor, includ ng VAT.

n Profit distribution

Proiit distributions to the shareholders are recognised as a liability in ¢ consolidated financial staiements in
the periac in which the distributions are approved by the General Ag;iernbly.

3.22 Maritime domain and concessions

In accordance with the Resolution to change the "Resolution on concession of maritime domain” .ssugd on 5
July 2007 and the Resctution isst.ed on 2 August 2007, BRODCEFLIT d.d and its subsidiaries use land
(580,539 m?) and sea (222,319 m?) trder concession for the Company s commercial use. The corncession
was given by the Republic of Croalia for a period of 32 years, starting ais of 19 April 2000.

Issues regarding the maritime dormain and concessions are redulated oy Maritime Law, Law on Marittme
Domain and Seaports, as well as tha Croatian Government resolution an concession of maritime domain for
the purpose of commercial exploitaticn of special purpose ports and the agreement between the soncassion
granior and the authorised concessioner regarding maritime concessions. There 1s a certain amount of
uncertainty for Brodosplit Group regarding ownership and the treatment of maritime domain (Ihe 1arritory
which boarders with the sea) which is currently owned by the Croatian government. Buildings iecatac on the
land reprasent maritime domain as wall,

The general maritime domain conuess on agreement for the purpose of commercial exploitation of special
purpose ports was concluded on 19 April 2000 (and subsequenthy updated on 2 August 2007 and % ALgust
2007, Official Gazette No. 72/07 arid G1/07) with the concession granter, the Cmatian government, and
coeniairs the following elements:

Subject of the agreement

The concession grantor authorises the authorised concessioner the right to commercially use the martime
doma 1, the special purpose port, wil a fand surface in the amourt of 563,549 m? and 222,319 " of water
surface, amounting to a total amount of 785,868 m? of maritime dorrain surfaces.

Right to use
The concession grants the right to commercially use the special puspose port - shipyard Split, located in the
Spli-datmatia County atong with adjacent buildings.

Cercession service time

The concaession is granted on a pericd of 32 years ccmmencing on tne agreement date,
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NOTE 3 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.22 Maritime domain and concessions (continued)

Corgession payment

The authorised concessioner must pay the concession grantor an arual fee which consist of two portions:
1. a fixed portion in the armout of HRK 0.5C per square malar of fand used per annum,
2. a variable portion in the arnount of 1% of the annual profits of the company, after tax.

Tha concession fee portions are paid as described befow:

1. the fixed portion - in tha frst and last year the paymenls made are relative to the mcnths the
concession was used, For all other years, it is payable ry later than 1 April for the cuirent year,;

2. the variable porion muyst ne paid by 30 April for the pravious year.

If the quthorised concessioner forfuits 1the concession befare the se-vice tme expires a fee in the arsunt of
three vears worth of the fixed portion of the fee must be paid out t t'e concession granter.

Nos -transferability of the concessiin

reessionaire may not. in wrole o in part, transfer the congess oo on the maritirte domain 0 arother
lega) o natural person without the 2x mass consent of the grantor,

2ssion for the use of mar i e property is calculated accarsi g to the conditions from the concluded
sdarting from 2000 and ig charged to the business expenses of the accounting penods.

Amreadmants to the Maritime Propsuty Goncession Agresment

The Jompany and the grantor of 3 concession were concluded uy The Government of the Reoublic of
Croatic on 11 February 2011, Addendurn 1 of the Maritime Property Corcession Agreement for 1 purpose
of ez omic use of the special purpone port - Split shipyard, whict charged:
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NOTE 3 - SUMMARY QF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

112 Maritime domain and concessions (continued)

The zoncession holder is obliged .z pay the concession granter @0 annuat fee consisting of two narls:
wermanent part in the ameount of FIRIC 3 per square meter of occupied area per year
sarable part of the fee in the amaat of 1% of annual income

Ihig concession fee is paid i the “c-iovaing way:

1. she permanent part of the fes for the current year shail be paid within 45 days from the day of
concluding the Addenduin to 112 concession agreement, for the following years in adva e untl April
15 of the current year

Z. he variable par: of the fae is paid backwards in two perta by 30 September for the firg half of the
zurrent year, unil April 37 o the second half of last ye: 1.

't Decree on Amendments ta he Decree an the Pracedurz 1or Granting a Concession an a Maritime
Fropery (OG RH No. 10/17) ol 10 February 2017 defines the caloulation of the variable pari o the fee in
maunt of 1% of annual ireerea, with income being the cortior of revenue that covers isms in the
sionaire’s Profit and Lus: Account as follows: staff couts, depreciation and period p-ofit. If the
s result of the period is & foss, the basis for caiculatng the corcession fee is calculatad only by
s amuing the positions of staff osts and depreciation. The ch:arge in the calculation of the roicession is
arohec from 11 February 2617,
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NCGTE 3 - SUMMARY OF SIGMIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.43 Changes in accoyunting policies and disclosures
initiat application of new amendmants to existing standards effective in the current reporting period

In the current reporting period. the following new standards, avendments to existing standaids ard new
inlzrpretations published by the intermational Accounting Standards Board (“JASB”) and adepled by the
European Union are in force:

In the current reporting pencd, the following amendments to existing standards published by the
Intemational Accounting Standia-ds Board (“IASB") and adopted by the European Union are in force

« Amendments to IAS 1 "Presentation of Financial Staterants” and IAS 8 “Accounting #olicies,
Changes in Accounting sfimates and Errors™ - Defin ticn of materiality, adopted in the ELropean
Union on 23 November 20149 (effective for annual perncis beginning on or after t January 2020)

«  Amendments to IFRS I "Business Combinations” « Dafindion of Business, adopted in the Ewropean
Union on 21 April 2020 {effective for business combinations for which the acguisition date is on or
after the beginning of the first annual reporting perioc beginning on or after 1. January 2020 and
for acquisitions of funds accurring on or after the beginning of that period)

«  Amendments to IFRS ¢ ‘Financial Instuments”, IAS 3% "Financial Instruments: Recognit on and
Measurement” and IFI3& 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclnsures” - Reform of Reference Interest
Rates, adopted in the Fusepean Union on 15 January 2020 effective for annual perigds beginning
on ot after 1 January 2020}

= Amendments to IFRS 14 "lLeases” - Lease Relief 1 the Context of the COVID-19 Fandemic
(adapted in the European Union on 9 Ocleber 2020, effective no later than 1 June 2023 far financiat
years beginning on or after 1 January 2020)

s Amendments 1o the reference to the Conceptual Frarmework in IFRS, adopled in the European
Union on 29 Novermnber 2019 (effective for annual pencds beginning on or after  January 2020).

Mhe adoption of these amenaments to existing standards dit not lead to significant changes in the
Cempany's financiat statements.

Ainendments to existing standards published by the IASE and adopted in the European Unicn, but
not yet in force

Al e date of approval of these lihancial statements, the following amendments to existing slandards
zFed by the IASB and adastea in the European Union wee published. but not in force:

s Amendments to IFRS < "Insurance Contracts” - Exténsion of the temporary exemption fiom the
application of IFRS 8. seapted in the European Unio1 on 15 December 2020 {the vy .ry date of
the temporary exemptisi frore the application of IFRE 9 has been moved from 1 Jaruary 2021 fo
annual pericds beginn..g on or after 1 January 2023;

«  Amendments to IFRS & ‘Faiancial Instruments™ 1AS 3% "Financial Instruments: Recognit on and
Measurement”. IFRS 7 “Financial [nstruments, Disc osurzs”, IFRS 4 "insurance Cori-acls” and
IFRS 16; "Leases” - Ruform of reference interest rates - Phase 2. adopted in the Ewrgp 2an Union
on 13 January 2021 (a¥ecive for annual penods begimting on or after 1 January 2021

1 ERUPA dao. and stbsider e Y]




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

32

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

Newr standards and amendments te the existing standards issued by JASB but not yet adopred by the

EU

IFRS currently adopted in the Eurcpean Union do not differ significantly from the regulations adopted by the
Intarnational Accounting Standard; Board (IASB), except for the following standards and amesdments 1o
existing standards, the adoption of which has not yet been decided by the Eurcpean Union. The fllowirg are
related 1o IFRSs issued by the [ASE):

The C

IFRS 14 “Regulatory Deferral ltems” (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 Jaauary
2018) - The European Commission has decided to postpone ihe adoption of this transitional standard
until its final version is published

IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts”, including amendments to IFRS 17 {(effective for annuzi cariods
beginning on or after 1 Jaruary 2023}

Amendments to [AS 1 "Presentation of Financial Staterents” - Classification of Shot-Term and
..ong-Term Liabilities (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023)

Amendments o 1AS 16 "Property, Plant and Equipment” - Revenue Prior 1o Intended Use {effective
‘or annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022)

Amendments to 1AS 37 'Frovisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’ - Harmful
Contracts - Costs of Fulfiling Contractual Obligations (effective for annual periods beginaing on or
after 1 January 2022)

Amendments to IFRS 3 “Business Combinations” - Refe-ences to the Conceptual Framrework with
Amendments te IFRS 3 {e fective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022)

Amendments to IFRS 10 ' Consclidated Financial Statemeris” and J1AS 28 “Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures” - Sale o investment of assets between an investor and its assoc:ale ar joint
venture and further amendrents (the original effective date is deferred until the complation of the
rasearch project on the apgl.zation of the share method)

Amendments to various standards due to *Revision of IFREs from the 2018-2020 cycle™, resulting
from the project of annual revision of IFRSs (IFRS 1, IFRS 9, IFRS 16 and 1AS 41}, prirracly to
alminate inconsistencies anid clarify the fext IFRS 1, IFRE 9 and 1AS 41 are effective for annual
periods beginning on cr after 1 January 2022. The amendmert 1o IFRS 16 is for iHustrative purposes
anly and does not specify sha ef'ective date. }.

ompany expects that the adapton of these new standards antl amendments to existing standards will

not ‘ead to significant changes in the Cornpany's financial statemands in the period of first applicat on of the
standards.
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NOTEs TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS,
FOR VHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

NOTE 4 - KEY ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The 3roup makes estimates and assumplions concerning the future, The resulting accounting eslimates will,
by cafinidon, rarely equal the reiat=d aclual results, The estimates and assumptions that have a significant
risk of e:a.sing a material adjustment to the carrying ameunts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year gre nutlined below.

{a) Income recognition - perceritage of completion method

Tne Cioup uses the percentage-cf-completion method in accounting for its revenue from consiraction
conraciz o delermine the approphiae amount fo recognise in a given period. The stage of camplation is
messued by reference to the contract cests incurred up to the balance sheet date as a percentage of total
estivized costs for each contract.

) Work in progress and reveriue

The revenues and costs reflected m the consolidated financiat sta’ements are based on tha Group's
enginearing and financial best estimites of the stage of contract completion and profit to be realized upon
courpletion. Construction work in progress is based on estimates of expected future costs and proft. As the
projact progresses, these estimates may change significantly i u-expected costs or unforesean project
difficulties ocour.

{c} Usefit [ife of tangibie assets

The Grolp reassesses the estimatad useful life of construction obje:ls equipment and transport gquipment.
The use'ul lives will be periodically renssessed if any changes in circuristances occur. Changes in stirates,
if any. wilt be reflected prospectively hrough the change in depreciation over the remaining useful life.

On ¥ {Zezember 2020 DIV GRUPA d.0.0. and Brodosplit group revalyad its land, property and aquipment. The
revaluzticn was camied out on the basis of assessments made by the sathorized appraisal company Hamzié
consultirg, market research craft, ¢(wned by Sejad Hamzi¢ and coust expert for construction and real estate
appraiil Hrvoje Balija.

(d) Recoverable amount of trade and other receivables

Tne recoverable amount of the receivables is estimated as the differencs between the asset's canrying armount
and thi oresent value of the estinaed future cash flows. discourted at the original effective irt2rest rate.
Short lerm receivables without the rate are valued at the original amount if the discounting effect is not
sgnifiant.

D' GRUPA d.0.0. and subsidiaries - 46



NO1LS TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECE MIBER 202¢

NOTE 4 - KEY ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(e) Impairment of inventories

Invenlores are estimated at each raporing date and are impaired based on estimated sales and aging
structu-e. The calculation of impairmant of individual inventories is bassd on the date of the 1ast sale and
turngver. Management has determingd impairment of ingividual inventory items with respect to the aging
structu .

U] _egal clairns and disputes

Provisiones for legal claims and dispuzas are recorded based on Managernent's best estimate of prabable
losses after consultation with a legal vounsael,

(g} Rapairs in the quarantee period

The Group recognizes provision for warranties for all products under warranty at the reporting date. The
provision is based on historical warranty data relating to defective procucts,

(b} Onerous contracts

The Giroup recognizes the provision for onerous contracts when tha expected benefits of the coriract are
lower than unavoidable expenses of fufiiment of the contracted obligations.

(i Government grants

Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
condilions attached to them; and the grants will be received. Receipt of a grant does not of itsef provide
consius viz evidenca that the condiliong attaching to the grant have been or will be fulfilled.

1} Racognition of deferred tax @s5als

In detersrining future taxable profits and the amount of tax benefits tha: are likely to be utilized in the future,
Manayement of the Company makes judgements and estimates based on taxable profits from previous years
and axpectations of future tncome that are believed to be reascrable under the existing circumstances.
Deferrad tax assets represent the taxaale profit and is expressed in the statement of financial pos tion.
Deferad tax assets are recognized b the extent of tax benefit that is probable to be achieved.
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T ES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT S
#OR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

NCTE 5 — SALES
2020 2019

(in thousands of HRK}

Shipbuilding 575,189 422,31
Sale of goods 267,452 376,735
Construction services 175,786 163,020
MNon-shipbuitding industry 25,737 222,183

1,044,164 1,184,239

Revenue from shipbuilding and revenue from off shore and steed construction are calculated in accordance
wilh IFRS 15 - Construction contracts, where percentage of coripletion is calculated using cos! model, he.
actording to the ratio of reatized costs in the observed period ancl total pianned costs far the related new
construction,

NOTE 6 - OTHER OPERATING INCOME

2020 2019

(in thousands of HRK)

Subsidies and government granis 50.842 -
Faversal of provisions 9,201 4,283
lncorre from write-off of liabilities 2,350 28,952
Ravenue based on use of own Froducts, goods and services 122 -
Ravenue from out of count settlement - 32,585
her operating income 32,287 11,148

94,802 76,968

Other aperating income mostly efers to collected written-off reccivables, sale of assets. ircame from
arbitration etc.
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NOUTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 D MBER 2020

NOTE 7 - MATERIAL EXPENSEDS
2020 2019

(in thousands of HRK)

Raw materials 211,790 362,312
“1.af and energy 25,857 25,630
Srnall inventory and spare parts 6,066 6,723
Raw materials and supplies 243,713 394,565
Gooeds sold 87,003 118,612
intellzctual services 13,381 22,638
Transport services 9,676 15,655
Treaiment preparation and processing 3,308 8,747
Udlities costs 1,471 3,442
Zost of postage, telephone, inte nat atc. 776 962
Other external costs 158,174 150,081
Other costs 186,786 201,525
Total material expenses 517,502 714,702

Qther external costs mostly relate t¢ subcontractor services, leass costs and ongeing maintenance costs.

NQGTE 8 - STAFF COSTS

2020 2019

(in thousands of HRK)

Mt wages and sataries 179,463 183,430
Taxes and contributions from salasies 58,947 65,201
Cordributions on salaries 39,242 41,345
“ither staff costs 26,176 22191

303,828 312,167

As at 31 December 2020 the number of employees in the Group was 2,887 (2019: 3,234).
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141 BES TO THE CONSOLIDAY D FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FU'R THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECE VIBER 2020

NCOTE 3 - OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
2020 2019

(in thousands of ~R¥;

\alue adjustment of assets 27,316 20,308
Aygpking charges 6,327 19,276
Frovisions 2,905 1,637
Concession 1,831 1,697
Other costs 121,085 158,076

159,464 200,994

Dther costs mostly refer to court and attorney's fees, insurance. uncollected receivabies, promolion, licences,
and similar.

NCTE 10 - FINANCIAL INCOME
2020 2019

{in thousands of MR

Fuasg tive exchange differences 41,946 12,284
Interest income 628 989
lncormre from unwinding of discount 442 348
Cnrer financial income 148 437

43,164 14,058

NOTE 11 - FINANCIAL EXPENSES

2020 2019

fin thousands of M)

Nagative exchange differences 57.555 17,367
Interest cost 21,385 72,740
Other financial expenses 99 1,914

79,039 92,021

Bo-rowing costs in the amount of HRK 54,158 thousands have besn capitalised from 15 Januziry 2020, at
whish time the technical and adminisirative work associated w.th tha project recommenced.
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NUTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 BECEMBER 2020

WOTE 12 - CORPORATE INCOME TAX
2020 2019

(in thousands of HRK)

Zwlreant tax 654 211
Daferred tax (2.846) 15.422)
(2,192) (5,211)
2020 2019
(in thousands of HFK)
Profit before taxation 93,298 68,006
Corporate incomme tax at a rate f 18% 16,794 12,241
Efiect of subsidiaries” different 1ex rates 18,702 1,936
Nori-deductible tax cxpenses 1,974 138,889
Nuor-taxahble income and tax ingent-ves (49,909) (60,474)
Temporary differences nat recognized as deferred tax assets {1,511) (196)
Tax ivss for which deferred tax assets were not recognized {1,950) (15,200)
Corrections for released DTL and lemporary LT asset differenge {902) -
Frevicusly unrecognised used tax fosses 14,611 1,693
»!'ax income recognisaed in the statement of comprehensive (2,192) {5,211)
income
Effactive tax rate {2%) {8%,)
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WOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

MNOTE 12 - CORPORATE INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)
Tax incentives and temporary diflerences not recognized as deferred tax assets

T Group benefits from tax incentives under the Investmert Promotion Act and the Fesearch and
Development Projacts Act, and has the status of the holder of rvestment-based incentive measures.

Based on the projects "Develosrent and research of new fasiengrs™, "Development and research of new
lacksmith welding positions” and *Davelopment and research of new surface protections®, the: company DIV
GRUPA d.o.o can use reliefs in the amount of HRK 83,554,179.40, which reduces the tax bass by 14,864,
HFK #25.28 income tax.

I nccardance with the regulations of the Republic of Croatia, the: Tax Authority may at any time inspect the
Group's books and records within 3 years fallowing the year in which the tax liability is reportec. and may
imposse additional tax liabilities and penalties.

Tne effect of different rates in the Group's countries refer ta the investment in the subsidiary DV-Sarajevo
d.¢.c.. Bosnia and Herzegovina, with a tax rate of 10%, subsidizrias Min Div Svrljig a.d.. TVIK DIV Valjevo
d.0.0. and DIV Betonski pragovi d.0.0., Serbia, with a tax rate of 15%, and to the subsidiary Shangai Vida
i~dusiry and Trading CO. LTD. China, with a tax rate of 25% 0 v Norway with a tax rate of 22% and 1o the
subsidiary Tradewind Voyages in tha UK with the tax rate of 19%.

Aceording to the legal criteria, some companies in the Brodospit group belong to the categery with a profit
1ax rate of 12%, and others have # rate of 18%.

Wovement of defered tax assat was as following:

2020 2019
(in thousands of HEK)

As at 1 January 6,730 6,365
Dacraase 1 -
Inerease 2063 425
As at 31 December 8,843 6,790

Mavement of defered tax liability was as following:

2020 2019
(in thousands of MFK)

As at 1 January 88,797 87,139
BT 12.850 7.080
a8y (5422)
As at 31 December 101,159 88,797
2020 2019
(in thousands of HF'K)
Totsl Corporate income tax {2,192) {5,211)

3eferred Tax liability was incurred or the basis of revaluation of ussels as described in Note "3 and Note
14
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NUTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

NCTE 14 - PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

Fru: carrying amount of the equipment in financial iease, in case of which the Group Is the lzssee, is as
fcHuws

31 Decernber 31 December
2020 2019

(in thousands of HRK)

Coast of equipment under financial lease 11,542 11,293
Azcumulated depreciation (958) (954)
Mot carrying amount 10,584 10,339

NOTE 14a - RIGHT TO USE A4SETS

Uz piul assets where the Group s the lessee under an operatirg lease have the carrying arount as

Yollows:
(i thousands of HRX) Building Equipment Total
January 1, 2020. 337 a3 930
Increase 1,230 327 1,557
Depreciation i1,088) {122) {1,210)
On December 31, 2020. 979 298 1,277

NCOTE 15 - INVESTMENT PROFERTY

{in thousands of HRK) Investment property

Purchase cost

As at 1/112019 5,174
Sales N A
Az ot 31/12/2019 4582
As at 1/1/2020 4.582
Ravalorisation 1089
Asg at 31/12/2020 5.641

Accumulated depreciation

As at 17172019 899
Anriual cost 1T
Salke e ,,,,,4@1_
A oat 31/12/2019 1,048
As at 1/1/2020 1.048
Annual cost 147
A at 31/12/2020 1.193

Net carrying amount

As at 111/2020 - S 3536
As at 34112/2020 4,448

Al 31 December 2020 the fair valu 2 of investment property amountad to HRK 4,448 thousand.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

NOTE 16 - OTHER INVESTMENTS

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

(irt thousands of HRK}
Financial assets available for sals 429 427
Other investments 25 24
454 451

Mavarment of available-for-sale financial assets:

Flnanzial assets
available for sale

fin thousands of HRK) (in thousancs of HRK)

1 Janvary 2020 427
Fzir value change 2
31 December 2020 429

Tg increase in the fair value and (he value adjustment is recognized in other comprehensive income.
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NUTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FUE THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

NCTE 17 - INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURES

Opaning balance
Additional investments
3hare in (loss)

Closing balance

2029 2019

fin thousands of |1RK}

16,079 15,214
693 954

8 (89)
16,780 16,079

Thi financial information concerning the investment in joint ventures can be summarised as follows:

14 31 December
a“;:g Investnent  Share in (loss) 2020
fin thousands of HRK)
Kamen-Dent ¢.0.0. 15,854 £03 (69) 16,478
Iarine and Enargy
Solutions DIV d.o.o. 225 - 77 302
16,079 693 8 16,780
Overview of financial data of associates — 100%
- Net
Assets Llabilities Income profit{loss)
nn thousands of HRK}
Kamen-dent d.o.o. 17,674 147} - (138)
lMarine and Energy
Ginlutions DIV d.o.0. 1,963 {* 845} 5,534 153
19,637 (1,792) 5,534 15

NCTE 18 — LONG-TERM RECEIVABLES

31 Decomber 34 December

2020 2019

(in thousands of HFK)
l-ang-term loans receivables frarm employees 2,638 3.813
Other long-term recelvables . 26
2,538 3,838
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

NOTE 19 - INVENTORIES

Raw materals and supplies
Finished products

Trade goods

Advarices for inventories
Production in progress

NOTE 20 - TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables

Value adjustment of trade receivables

Trade receivabies - net

Receivables for given advances

Receivables for government grants and subsidies
Siven loans, deposits and similar

Receivables - cession and assignation
Receivables for Loans given to employees

Given loans to related parties

Other receivables

Impairment of trade receivables and other receivables in
accordance with IFRS €

Receivables from employees

Movemants in impairment of trade receivables were as foliows:

(in thousands of HRK)

Ealance as at 1 January
(Decrease)increase

Increase of expected credit loss IFRS 9
Collectad previously written off receivables

Balance as at 31 Dacember

31 December 31 December
2020 2019

{in thousands of HIRIC)
201,585 177,892
145,059 136,181
110,203 84,483
103,692 41,187
30,444 28,666
590,994 488,419
31 December 31 December
2020 2019

(in thousands of HRK}

79,630 78,980
(22,445) (26,211)
57,185 52,769
- 16,381
26,378 68,251
8,833 22,022
2,688 5,355
1,641 1,884
380 -
45,586 37,343
{3,518) (3.562)
19 -
139,193 201,443
2020 2019
29,773 27,502
(3,475) 2,993
(44) 693
{291) {1,415)
25,963 29,773

Impairment losses on customer receivables are disclosed in the item Value adjustment of current assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FUR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

NCTE 20a - RECEIVABLES CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

{in thousands of HRK;
Aczcrued revenue 1,227,898 714,930
1,227,898 714,930

Aci;rued revenue includes amount of HRK 1,227,898 thousand which relates to customer receivables from
construction contracts (Note 28},

In 2021, accerding to project 467, the Group realized a total of HRK 817,016 thousand, while for project 485
and D8K project it realized HRK 56522 and 7,192 thousand. In 2021, the Group realized a total of HRK
829,830 thousand.

NOTE 21 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
3t Dacember 31 Decamber

2020 2019

{in thousands of MRk,
Cash in bank 54,405 24,768
Cash in hand 946 896
55,351 25,664

Cash in bank includes cash in 1he amount of HRK 8,627 thousand (31 December 2018: HRK 16,253
thousand) that Group cannot use vecause these funds are moved to special bank account due to lagal cases.

NQTE 22 - SHARE CAPITAL

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

{in thousands of HRK}
Refained profit 1,106,098 1,096,350
Ravaluation reserves 378.025 331,062
Share capital 245,737 245,737
Profit for the year 95,490 73,218
Cither reserves 45,888 44,281
Non-controlling interest 10,555 7,176
Capilal reserves 6,083 6.084
1,887,878 1,304,934
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

NOTE 23 -~ PROVISIONS

31 December 31 December
2020 2019

fin thousands of HRK}
Revaluation reserves 378.025 331,062
l_.agal reserves 28,508 29,921
Other reserves 19,460 16,856
Capital reserves 6,083 6,084
Reservas from foreign currency lranskation (2,079) (2.495)
420,997 381,428

l.egal reserves

In line with Croatian laws, the legal reserve should be formed al a minimum of 5% of the profil for the year
until the total legal reserve reaches 5% of the Company's share capital. In 2015, based on the dacision of the
Company's General Assembly, HRIK 1,500 thousand were transferred to the legal reserves from the
subsidiary's retained earnings. Legal raserves are not distributatie,

Othar reserves

Otiwer reserves in the amount of HRK 11,989 thousand were formed by distributing earnings from the previous
paviod of certain subsidiaries or by using a tax incentive based or: profit reinvestment from the pravious year,
in lire with the Assembly’'s decision. The remaining reserves refer to capital reserves of the subsidiary and
the fa:r value reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

NOTE 24 - LIABILITIES TOWARDS BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

31 December

31 December

2020 2019
{in thousands of HRK;
Nen-current liabllities towards banks and other financlal
institutions
Long-term bank loans 312,579 613,110
Currant maturity of bank loans (95,915) (49,568)
Financial lease 3,064 3.845
Currentt maturity of fnancial lease (1,512) (1,823)
' 218,616 " 565,566
Curvent liabilities towards banks and other financilal
institutions
Shert-term ioans with banks 593,474 124,659
Current maturity of long-term loans 95,815 49,566
Shor-term liabilities for financial leases 1,512 1,823
690,901 176,048
Total llabilittes towards banks and other financial institutions 909,517 741,614
Maturity of borrowings is as follows!
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
(in thousands of HRK]
Maturity up to 1 year 682,389 174,225
Maturity from 1-2 years 69,932 418,183
Maturity from 2-5 years 142,132 145,355
Waturity over § years 2.
906,453 737,769
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

NOTE 24 - LIABILITIES TOWARDS BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS (CONTINUED)

Maturity of financial lease fiabilities is as follows:

2020
(in thousands of HRK}
Equity Interest Total
Up to 1 year 1,512 123 1,635
Fram 1 to 2 years 851 44 895
From 2 to 5 years 701 22 723
3,064 189 3,253
2019
(in thousands of HRK)
Equity Interest Total
Up to 1 year 1,823 133 1,956
Frarn 1 to 2 years 1,082 84 1,126
Fram 2 to 5 years 960 37 997
3,845 234 4,079

The carrying amount of the Group's borrowings is denominated in the following currencies:

31 Decomber 31 December
2020 201%

(in thousands of HRK)
EUR 856,377 707,769
S0 10,076 -
HRK 40.000 30,000
906,453 737,769

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has a short-term facility with a commercial bank regarding guarantees,
overdrafts and letters of credit in 1he amount of HRK 27,736 thousand (in 2019: HRK 129,873 thousand) of
which, at 31 December 2020, HRK 12,488 thousand were unused (in 2019 HRK 45,427 thousand). The
Group also has a limit with the insurance company Zurich Insuranse Group in the amount of HRK 52,758
thousand, of which HRK 29,932 thousand was unused as at 31 December 2020 {2G19: HRK 51,678
thousand).

Loans from banks
Bank loans in the amount of HRK 511,882 thousand (2019; HMFK 674,701 thousand} carry a fixe¢ annual

interest rate when HRK 204,577 thousand carry variable anrual interest rates {in 2019: HRK 63,069
{housand).

There is also long term loan from HBOR and VTB which have been rectassified as Babilities for advances.

+ Long-term liabilities 1o HECR for financing the consiruction of the ship NB 487 in the amount of
EUR 87,883,511.68 (EUR 75,106,393,00 was used on 31 December 2020}
Date of delivery of the ship is 01.04.2021, when the long-term loan was entirely setlled.

+  Short-term liability to VTB for financing the construction of tha ship NB 485 in the amount of EUR
32,000,000.00 (EUR 31.500,000.00 was used on 31 Decemnber 2020).
VTB loan for NB 485 |s classified as a short-term advance in the amount of HRK 226,106.840.00.

The loan repayment for NB 487 is in 113 monthly annulties (no later than March 1, 2030), of which the first
annuity is due one month from the day of handing over the new building to the borrower. Bills of exchange
and debentures of the subsidiary of the loan holder Polaris Exploration Ing. are given as coltateral, and co-
dadtors of Brodospiit d.d., guaranige from Ministry of finance, corporate guarantee from the owner of
Charterer and the pledge on new construction which is the subject of financing. Upon completion of
construction and delivery of the ship to the charter, guarantee fror Ministry of finance is changed by the credit
ingurance policy (ECA). The loan s repaid by Charterer by directly paying the rent in the Bank.
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NUTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FUR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

NCTE 24 - LIABILITIES TOWARDS BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS (CONTINUED)

Thiz Ioan was reclassified as long-lerm advances under the bareboat chavter agreement, as the loan is
intoncad to finance the construction of a NB 487. During construction, the loan amount is clagsified as long-
term advances and represents the abligation of the shipbuilder, Upon completion of construction, e advance
Is ra tonger the obligation of the shipbuilder because he has fulf lied all of his obligations under the contract
bu! the obligation passes to the end customer,

In case that the end customar does not make the payment, the Bank is insured in the form of a loan insurance
policy and a corporate guarantee from the Charterer owner. Charlzrer also has the aption o purchase the
boat at any time after delivery, and the obligation to purchase no iater than 10 years,

Financial leases

Financial leases mostly refer fo vehicia leases.

Securities
Bank received loans are secured with the pledge over Graups lands and buildings, as disclosed in Note 14,

Reucieved loans are secured with ECA policy and corporate guarantee from the Charterer owner.

NOTE 25 - PROVISIONS

31 Decembsr 31 December
2020 2019
(in thousands of HRK]

l.ongsterm provisions

Lagal claims 9.656 13,522
Cither provisions . 1024 2772
10,680 16,294
Short-term provisions
Ursed vacation days 1,580 1,836
1,580 1,835
Total provisions 12,260 18,129

Mavarments in provisions during 2020 are presented in the table below:

Balance at
Balance at . .

Recognised in 31
1 Jan;;g profit or loss Used December
2020

fin thousands of HRK)
Legal claims 13,522 2977 (6,843) 4,856
Raviundancy benefits 2,114 1,887 (3.6835) 366
Rapairs in the guarantee pericd 1,835 - - 1.835
Unusad vacation days 658 (255) - 403
18,129 4,609 {10,478) 12,260
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

NCOTE 25a - LONG TERM LIABILITIES

31 Daecember 341 December

2020 2019
fin thousands of HRK)
Raceived advances for ships (i) 641,438 475,058
Liabilities for taxes and contributions 13,338 -
Ciher liabilities (ii) 6293 8914
661,069 481,972
fi) Contains a long-term loan for the NB 487 from the {ong-term bank lcans {Note 24}, which was

delivered on 01.04.232*. and the long-term loar: was entirely settled.

{ii} Other long-term liabilities include ease liabilities in the amount of HRK 854 thousand.

NOTE 26 - TRADE AND OTHER LIABILITIES

Trade payables
Dther liabilities

Other habilities:

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

(in thousands of HRK)
265,045 255,340
512,157 213,212
777,202 468,552

31 December 31 December

2020 2019
(in thousands of HRK)
Liabilities for received advances 272,258 32,634
Taxes, contributions and similar duties payable 81,789 93,396
Loan liabilities towards owners 62,268 -
l.oar liabilities 44,782 11,800
Liabilities towards employees 17,927 18,188
orcession fee liabilities 850 3,078
Lease liabilities from IFRS 16 271
Liabilities to banks for fees and interest - 25,853
Mher short term liabilities 32,012 22,446
512,157 208.495
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

NCTE 27 - DEFERRED EXPENSES AND FUTURE PERIOD INGCIOME

31 December

31 December

2020 2019
fin thousands of 'RK)
Accrued expenses 29,815 13,290
Pregaid income 11.485 17,832
Future period income (Governrient supports) . Mos4 12378
42,685 43,298
NOTE 28 - CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS
tir thousands of HRK) 2020 2019
sontract costs incurred up to reperting date 1,687,396 1,139,813
Fecognised (losses)/gains up to the reporting date 176,429 124,105
l.ass: invoicing in progress anid advances received (778,246} ~ (602,602)
E:ﬁi:ivabies from /{payables to) the customaers for the contracted 1,085,579 561,316
Reclassified to deferred revenue 1,227,898 714,930
) REF‘laSSIﬂed to advances recelved from suppliers and acerues (142,319) (53,614)
rgvanue e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

NUTE 29 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's operations are exposed to the following risks:

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital by ensuring the continuity of its business with maximising the return on
investment for its shareholders though optimising debt and capital.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt which includes loans and borrowings received from
financial institutions, cash and cash squivalents and equity which includes share capital and losses camied
lorwarc.

The ratio of net debt fo capital (gearing ratio) on the reporting date was as folfows:

31 December 31 December
2020 2019

(i thausands of HRK)

[Debl {long-term and short-term credits) 906.453 737.769
Cash and cash equivalents (55.351) . ..125,664)
Nat debt 851.102 712,105
Equity 1,877,323 1,804,934
Debt to equity ratio 46% 38%

Debi is defined as long-term and short-tenn credit liabilities received from financial institutions. The principal
includes all capital and all reserves.

Tha Group is exposed to the international market and is largely financed through loans denominated in EUR.
As aresult, the Group is subject 1o the influence of changes in market prices and the effect of exchange rate
differences and interast rate changes. However, this risk is mitigated by the fact that revenues are also
dencminated in EUR. The most significant credit exposure of the Group is refated to the NB 487 project, in
which the loan is repaid by Charterer by direct rent payments to the credit lot. The Group achieves a significant
amount of its revenue through the axport of goods cverseas, sa foreign currency inflows are used zs a natural
hadye that covers foreign currency cutflows for repurchase and rapaymaent of denominated foreign currency
loans. Furthermore, the averags ttme from the arder date to the delivery of the goods is 10 days. 5o there is
no significant risk of changes in the cost of production compared! to the selling price. Regarding changes in
raw material prices, the market responds promptly to changes in raw material prices, and becauss of
consistent and constant customer acceptance, this risk is minimized. The Group have achieved commercial
conditions with strategic suppliers of reproduction that allow the Group to defer payment up o 180 days.
Givan that the price of raw material 1s seasonal, low-priced periods are used to optimize procurement costs.

Financlal risk management

The Group is pradominantly exposed to the international mariel. Therefore, the Group is affected by price
changes on the world market of the main raw materials, which are dependent on exchange rate fluctuations.
Sirwe the majority of revenues arw generated on foreign markets, this risk is not significant.

Financial risks include the market risk (inctuding currency risk and price risk), credit risk, liguidity risk and
inturest cash flow risk.
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NUTES TO THE CONSOLIDAT ED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FUR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

NOCTE 29 - RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

The catagories of financial instrurnents valued at cost are as follows:

31 December 31 December

2020 2019
(in thousands of HIRK)
Financial assets at amortized cost
Trade receivables and other recaivables 1.367.273 934,634
Given loans 10.854 7.576
Cash and cash equivalents 55.351 25,664
1.433.478 967,874
Financial assets at depreciated cost
Trade payables and other liabilities 809,094 £69,547
Financial lease 3.064 3,845
.nans liabilities 906.453 737,769
Cither long-term liahitities 641,438 475,058
2.360.049 1,776,219

Cradit risk

Credil risk refers to the risk of a contracting party not paying the cammitment and thus causing a financial
loss o the Group. The Group has adopted tha policy in which it conducts business exchusively with
craditworthy contracting parties, ¢nsuring collateral as a means tg minimize the risk of financist loss due to
the unfulfillment of contract agreements. The Group's exposu-e and credit position of contracting parties is
constantly monitored and the total amount of completed transactions is distributed between approved
contracting parties,

Cartracting the construction of a ship with customers of unknown or with lack of creditworthiness, estimated
by the: Group, will be secured with so-called Payment guarantees from first class hanks. The Gioup's policy
is that significant advance payments are made to suppliers only after the issue of advance payments
guarantees,

Trade receivables are accounted by a smalt number of buyers who are located in different geographical
tecat:uns. The continuous valuation of receivables are carried out based on the financial position of the buyer
an: when necessary, receivables guarantee is acquired or another financial instrumert which ensures
payment.

The credit risk of kquidity assets and derivative financial instrumants is limited due to the fact that the
cotiracting parties are representad by banks with high credit ratings defined by international credit risk
delermining agencies.

interest risk

Mast of the borrowings for which nterests are caiculated are cor lracted at fixed and vanable interest rates.
The risk is managed by maintaining a suitable combination betwsen fixed and variable interast rates on
borrewings. The Group is currenlly not protected against such risks as EURIBOR values have been at
historically low levels for several past years, A hedging option is planned to be considered for the next period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

NOTE 29 - RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Financial risk management (continued)

Currency risk

Dug 0 the currency structure of assels and their sources as well as the cusrency structure of future economic
flows. the Group is not exposed te a substantial risk of exchange rale fluctuations. In order to reduce this risk,
the Gircup is attempting to establish a balance between currency mlows and outflows, and contract the sales
prices of new-builds and junction elaments in a currency basket {LJSD and EUR). In particutar, since the
predominant part of the exchange rate cost is reported in EUR, this decreases the conversion costs and
neyatve exchange rate differences caused by changes in exchange rates when setfling liabilities. The Group
cont nuously follows the exchange rates and the currency structure of any planed cutflows and arranges the
currency credit funds accordingly.

The Group is exposed to a currency risk by contract prices for raw materials agreed in fore gn currencies.
The currencias most exposed 1o this risk are EUR and USD. The Group achieves more than 50% of its
revenuz through the export of gocds overseas, so foreign currency inflows are used as a natural hedge that
compiately covers foreign currency outflows for repurchase and repayment of denominated fere-gn currency
loans. The Group currently does not use financial instruments (forward transactions, FX options, currency
swaps etc.) which are available today on both the domestic and foreign financial markets, because most
liabilities denominated in foreign currency are covered by inflows in the same currency.

The following table shows the Group's carrying amounts of monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currency
on the reporting dato.

Liabilities Assets
31 Decembar 31 Decernber 31 December 31 December
2020. 1019, 2020. 2019,
(in thousands of HRK) fin thousands of HRK)

EUR 1.933.783 1.416.844 124,525 179.023

usn 24915 21.430 32.487 29.342

NOK 3.580 1.819 B -

GBP 754 84 10.877 315

Cither currencies 567 588 54 242
1,963.599 1.444.765 167.943 208.922

Az explained above, due to the fact that the majority of transactions with foreign customers are denominated
in the EUR and the US0, the Group is mainly exposed to the fluctuations of the HRK against the EUR and
ihe LUSD, the risk is reduced by purchases in the same currencies.

The kallowing table analyses the Group's sensitivity to increasing the exchange rate of the HRK by 1% against
the EUR and 1% against the USD as an estimate of the realistic possible increase in the exchange rates of
the above-mentioned currencies. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated items and their convarsion at the end of the period based on the percentags change in @xchange
rates. Sensitivity analysis inciudes monstary assets and liabilities in the currency. The negative figure shows
a decrease in profit if the HRK has changed in relation to the relevant currency for the above percentages. In
the case of a revarse proportional change in the value of the HRK relative to the relavant currency, the impact
an profit would be the same and the opposite.

Impact of EUR
2020 2018
(in thousands of HRK)
inc-ease/(Decrease} of nat resulis +/- 18.093 +/-12.398
Impact of USD
2020 2019
{in thousands of HIRK)
Increase/(Decrease} of net resulls +- 76 +-79

The Group does not use currency sk hedging instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
F{R THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

NCTE 29 - RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Financial risk management (continued)

Market risk

The Group is exposed to a substantial rise in the prices of ferro.
raw materials. The Group has, for the most part, neutralized 1his risk by arranging a, so called, “safeguard
clause for the ferrous metallurgy” which states that the income per ship delivered is increased by the amount
ol axpenses incurred due 1o the rise of ferrous metallurgy betwaer the delivery and the time the ship was
orclergd. in addition, the share of ferrous metallurgy in the totat value of ships under censtruction is at levels
arcund 5-8%, s0 a change in price dees not pose a significant rigx,

Licurichity risk

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining appropriate reserves, bank and borrowed funds raserves as
well as continuous monitoring of the expected and actual cash flows and comparing the maturity dates of
financial assets and liabilities.

rnetallurgy as well as the prices of other

The time mismatch of financial inflows and outfiows is bridged hy using credit funds and "borrowing” funds
from other projects in order to mirimize financial expenses related to the consiruction of individuat projects.

Regarding changes in raw material prices, the market respands promptly to changes in raw matgrial prices,
and bacause of consistent ang vonstant customer acceptance. this risk is minimized. The Group have
achizved commercial conditions with strategic suppliers of reprodiiction that allow the Group to defer payment
up o 180 days. Given that the price of raw material is seasonal, low-priced periods are used to optimize
procurement costs.

Regulatory risk

Republic of Croatia joining the Eurnpaan Union made the Group significantly exposed to regulatony risk, which
is mostly related to changes in the areas of government grants regulations.

Fair value of financial instruments
IFfS 7 states that fair value evaluations must be presented in levals under the following hierarchy:
Quoted prices (Unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

Inputs which do not represent quoled prices included in level 1 but represent observable inpuls for assets or
liatilities, be it diractly {as a price] or indirectly (derived from price) tlevet 2).
Inputs for assets or liabilities that are not based on cbservable market data (invisible inpufs) (leval 3).

(in thousands of HRK) Leval 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

31 December 2020
Available-for-sale financial assets

Listed companies 245 245
Uniisted companias 184 184
Total 245 184 429
{in thousands of HRK) Lavel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

31 Dacember 2019
Ava lable-for-sale financial asseis

Listed companies 248 248
Liniisted companies 179 179
Total 248 179 427
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

NCTE 29 - RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Financial risk management (continued}
Fair value of financial instrumunts (continued)

The fair value of financial assets and tinancial liabilities is deterimined as follows:

s+ The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilites traded on active liquid markets, under
standard conditions, is determined at the prices quoted nn the market;

+ The fair value of other financial assets and other finansial liabilities is determined in accardance with
pricing models based on tne analysis of discounted cash: flows using prices from well-known market
transactions and prices offgred for similar instruments.

Financial instruments held to maturily in the normal course of busness are recognized at cost or the net
amount decreased for the repaym.ent period. Fair value is determined as the amount by which the financial
instrument can be traded between voluntary expertise parties under market conditions, except in the case of
ferced sales or liquidation. The farr value of a financial instrument is the one quoted on the securities market
or the: ohe obtained by using the ciscounted cash flow methaod.

As at 31 December 2020 the reported amounts of cash, short-term deposits, receivables, short-term liabilities,
accrued expenses, short-term borrowings and other financial instruments correspond to their raarket value
because of the short-term nature of these assets and liabilittes and because most current assets and current
llabliltles carries vanable interest rates.

Al -eporting dates, the book valu: of bank and other loans is approximate to their fair value since most of
thes= loans carry a variable Interzst rate or a fixed intefest rale that approximates current market interest
retes.

Liguidity risk management
The liguidity risk management 's rasponsibility of the Management, which sets the approprigte liquidity risk
managament framework, with the aim of managing short, medium and long-term financing and liquidity
requirements. The Group manages the liquidity risk by following the net shert term position ancl addressing
the expected liquidity deficits.

Insurance policies for foreign and gomestic receivables were rer ewed, which further affected the regularity
of inflows from customers.

Tha Group's large storage enables it to promptly react to the customer's needs and reduce delivery times,
whizh places it in a very favourabl s position in relation to its competition, and also enables it to raactin times
of reduced liquidity and, for example, selling stock at lower prices, but still with a significant margin.
Furthwrmore, the Group contracts big projects by requesting advance paymaents in order to enable the initial
puchase of materials.
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NOTES TO THE CONSQLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

NCTE 29 - RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUELD)

Flnancial risk management (continued)

Lilguidity risk analysis

Contractual maturity of financial liabilities and financial assets of the roup from the consolidated statement
of linancial position at each periot end are shown below. Calculations are based on undiscounted cash flows
U to their maturity and include cash flows from principal and interest.

Liabilities
Mast
&t 31 December carrying  Contractust 1-2 2-5 Over &
2720 amount  cash flows Upto i year  years yaars yiears
(in thousands of HRK)
Naon-interest bearing
fizbilities
Tracte payables 265,045 265,045 266,045 - . -
Cther liabilities 317,842 317,942 317,942 - N ~
582 987 582,987 582,937 - - ~
fuarest bearing
iabilities
Finance lease 3,064 3,253 1,834 BYS 724
|:abilities for loans 906,443 974,549 742,275 78,083 148,161 5,050
Cther long-term 867,545 894 135 894 135 - - -
liatilites
1,777,062 1,871,937 1,638,044 78,958 149,885 5,050
2,360,049 2 454 924 2,221,0) 78,958 149,885 5,050
The average interest rate for 2020 is 5.04%.
Net
carrying  Contractual Jpto 1 1-2 25 Overs
At 31 December 2019 amount cash flows year years yoars years
fin thowsands of HRK}
Non-interest bearing liabiiities
Other liabilities 254,447 254,447 354,447 - - -
Trade payables 305,100 305,100 305,100 - . -
559,547 559,547 549,547 - - -
{friterest bearing liabilities
Finance lease 3,845 4,079 1,958 1,126 997
Liawiiities for loans 737,769 830,845 231,112 441,576 158,058 -
Other long-term liabilities 475,058 592,038 35,543 73,686 198,884 290,757

1216,672 1,426,962 265,611 516,488 357,938 290,757
1,776,219 1,086,509 628,158 516,488 357,930 290,757

The average interest rate for 201% is 4.56%.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3t DECEMBER 2020

NOTE 29 - RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management (continued)

Ligquidity risk analysis {continued]}

Assets
Net

carrying  Contractual 1-2 2-5 Over5s

At 31 December 2020 amount _ cash flaws Upio1year years YEArs  years
(in HRK thousand)

Non-interest bearing assels
Rfageivaples - cession and 2,688 2 688 2 688 } . R
assignation
Trada receivables 79.830 79.830 79.630 - - -
Cther receivables 1.284.955 1.284.955 1.384.955 - ~ -

1.367.273  1.367.273 1,367.273 - - -

Interest bearing assets

Given loans and deposits 10.854 10.951 10.951 - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 55 351 55,351 55.351 - - -
66.205 66.302 66.302 - - -
1.433.478  1.433.575 1,433,575 - - -

Net
carrying  Contractual Upto1 1-2 25 Overb
At 31 December 2019 amount  cash flows year years years  years

(in HEK thousand)
Norn-interest bearing assels

Rec_eivaples - cession and 5.355 5.355 5.355 . ) )
assignation

Trade recsivables 100.057 100.057 1(:).057 - - -
Other receivables 829.221 829.221 828,221 - - -

934633 934.633  434.633 . . -
Interest bearing assels

Given loans and deposits 1.576 7.576 7.576 - B -
Cash and cash equivalents 25.664 25.664 25.664 - - -
33.240 33.240 33.240 - - -

967.873 967.873 967.873 - - -

Thi: Grroup is exposed to interest rate risk since it is borrowing bath at fixed and variable interest rates. This
risk. is ot significant at this time, given the historically low levels of EURIBOR and the anncuncerent of
retention of these values in the coming period. Variable interest rates that were applicable to ‘he relevant
padtinn of the Group's borrowings at the reporting date are basec on the following:
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NCTE 29 - RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Firancial risk management (continued}

nterest risk sensitivity analysrs

The sensitivity analysis below is rased on exposure to interest rate risk at the repoarting dats. For varable
interest rales, the analysis was prepared in such a way as to calculate the effact of a reasonably possible
incraase in interest rates on bomawing with variable interest rates an the expected contractual cash flows of
such borrowings in refation to thuse calculated using the interest rate applicable at the end of the cusrent
reporting peried. In internal reportir g of interest rate risk to key management, an increase / decrgase of 50
base points is used, which représents a realistic change in interest rates according to the Management
Board's estimates.

The wstimated effect of a realistic. change in interest rates on the (3roup’s profit before tax for the reporing
pericd is as follows:

Increase / Decrease of Effect on change in pre-tax
variable interest rate profit in thousands of HRK
2020
HRK +-3.5 +/-5.164
219
R +-0.5 +/- §.927

Mast of the borrowings for which nterests are calculated are cortracted at fixed and variable interest rates.
The risk is managed by maintairing a suitable combination belween fixed and variable inlerast rates on
borrewings. The Group is currently not protected against such risks.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

NOTE 30 — SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

Below is a review of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures:

Mame of subsidiary Country 5hdﬁ};em Business activity

Brodogradevna industeija Spht dionicko druitvo Croatia 99,76 Shipbuilding

Brodosplit - Plovidba d.o.0. Croatia 99,76 Sea and coastal water transport of freight

Brodosplit - Brodogradihite specyalnih objekats d.o.o Croatia 99, 76 Building of stups and floating strudtures

Brodosplit - Tvornica dizel motora d.o.o. Croatia 99,76 Manufacture of engines and turbyines, except aircraft, vehicle and cycle engines

Brodospht - Trgoving d.o.0. Croatia 949, /e Wholesaie of ether machinery and equipment

Brodasplit Zastita brodskog trupa ad korozye d o.o. Cioatia 99,76 Manufacture of metal structures and parts of structures

Brodosplit - Transportna sredstva d.o.o. Croatia 99,76 Renting and leasing of machinery, equipment and tangible goods

Brodesplit - (elik d.o.o. Cioatia 99,76 Manufacture ot metal structures and parts of structures

Brodosplit - Opremanje plovaih objekdta d .o o, Croatia 99,76 Manufacture of metal structures and parts of structures

Brodosplt - Trup d.o.o. Croatta 49, /6 Marnufacture of metal structures and parts of structures

Brodosplit - Sliojd.o.o. {roatia 99,76 General inechanical engineering

Brodosplit - Montaza d ¢.0. Croatia 99, 76 Manufacture of metal structures and parts of structures

Bradospht - Boja d.o o, Croatia 99,76 Repair and maintenance of ships and boats

Brodospht - Elok d.o.o. Crodtia 99,76 Building ot ships and tloaling structures

Brodosglit - Ratunovadstyo « financije d 4 o {roatia 89,93 Accounting, book-keeping and auditing activities; tax consuitancy

Brodosplit Informatika d.o.o. Croatia 99,93 Computer tacilities management actwvibes

Bradosplit - Laboiratonj d.o.0. Croatia 99,93 Technical tasting and analysis

Brodosplit - Atest d.o.o. Croatia 99,93 Security systems service activities

Brodospht - tjudski resursi d.o.o. Lroatia 99.93 Other human Fescurces provision

Brodosplit - Plovne dizalice d.o.o. Croatia 93,93 Renting and leasing of water transport equipment

Brodosplit - Priviemena energetika d.o.o. Croatia 99,93 Production of electricity

Brodosplit - Ciséenie d.o.o Croatia 99,93 Other cleaning activities

Srodosplit - Optinwzacya s ekologya d.oo. Croatis 89,93 Remediation activities and other waste management secices

Brodosplit - Alatnica d.o.o. Croatia 99,93 General mechanical engineering

Brodosplit  (driavanje d.o.o. Croatia 99,93 Repair of machinery

Brodosplit - Skela d.o.o, Croatia 99,93 Manufacture of metal structures and parts of structures

Broedasplit - Clevarska iziadad.o o, Ctoatia 59,93 Casting of iren

Brodesplit - Bravarija i limarja d.0.0. Croatia 99,93 Repait of fabricated metal preducts

Brodosplt  Automatizacija d.o.o. Croatia 99,93 Computer facilitres management activities

Power Voyages d.o.o. Croatta 99,93 Travel agency

Brodosplt '7vor energije vietroparkova d.o.o. Croatia 99,93 ftenting and leasing of machinery, equipment and tangible goods

Brodosplit Produkt phnske elektraned.o.o. Croatia 99.93 Renting and leasing of machinery, equipiment and langible goods

Brodosplit  Vjetrostupovi d.o.o. Croatia 99,93 Manufacture of metal structures and parts of structures

Brodosplit- Khmatizaciz i ventilacia d.o.o. Croatia 99,33 plumbing, heat and air conditioning installation

Brodosplit - Brodska 1 ostalz oprema d.c.o. Croadtia 99,93 Manufacture of metal structures and parts of structures

Brodosplit - Metaine konstrukaje d.o.o. Croatia 99,93 Manufactuie of metal strizctures and parts of structures

Brodosplt Namjeita) po mjeri d.o.o. (roatia 94,93 Instatiation of carpentry

Brodosplt - interger i zavréni radovi d.o.o. (roatia 99,93 Installation of carpentry

Brodospht - $trojna okvada d.o.o. Croatia 99,93 General mechanical engineering

Brodosplit - Ljevaonica d.o.o. Croatia 99,93 Casting ot iron

Brodosplr - Istrazivanje 1 razvoj d.o.o. Croatia 99,93 Research and expermental development on natural sciences and engineering

Biodosplit Korporativna 2astita d.o.o. Croatia 99,93 Private security activities

Brodosplit - Gradn)z d.o.o Croatia 99,93 Construction of residential and non-residential buildings

Brodosplit - Otpremnistvo d.o.o. {roatia 99,093 ther transportalion suppert actvities

Brodosplit - Najam Vozila 8.0.0. Croatia 99,93 Renting and Jeasing of cars and ight motor vehicles

Brodosplit- Oblaganje d.0.0 Croatia 99,83 Building of ships and floating structures

Brodosplit - Servis bradova d.o.o. Croatia 99,93 Repair and maintenance of ships and boats

DY Betonskl pragovi d.0.0., Svrtjig Sefina 100 Production of concrete thresholds

DIV Brodogradnja d.o.o. Croatia 100 Production of metal structures

DIV d.o.0., Sdrajevo it 100 Production of metal structures

Kamen-Dent d.o.o. 8iH 50 Wind power plants

MARINE AND ENERGY SOLUTIONS DIV d.o.o. Cioatia 50 Ship design

MARINE CONSULTING d.o.0. Croatia 50 Ship design

MIN-DIV Svrijig a,d,, Svurljig Lerbid Rb6,45 Production of ralway track fixtures

Shangai Vida industry & Trading Co, Ltd China 100 Purchase mediation

TWIE-0W d.o.a., Valieva serbia 100 Forgmeg, turning and trade

OV Ciuises, INC SAD 160 Travel agenty

v UilEte d.oo, Craatia 100 Other education and teaching

fradewind Voyages UK LT UK 100 Travel agency

Fificient Powerful Successfuid.o.o Croatia 100 Buiding of ships and floating structures

01V Shipbuilding Norway AS Norway 100 Owvn shares and other participauions

Brodagradevii mstitute d.0.0 Croatia 100 Other research and experimental development on natural sciences and
engmeering

radewand voyages UK LTD cornpany rumber 12450168 that 1o 120% owned substdiary of DIV Group af year ending 21st December 2020 DIV
Gioup agrees under sertion 4793 ta an audi exemption for financial year ending 31st December 2020
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NOTE 30 -~ SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

Through the subsidiary Brodosplit - Plovidba d.0.0., the Company also manages the following companies: BS
STAR SHIPPING Inc, BURIN WIND CRUISE SHIPPING Inc, GARBIN WIND CRUISE SHIPPING Inc,
LEVANT WIND CRUISE SHIPPING Inc, MAESTRAL WIND CRUISE SHIPPING Inc, PULENAT WIND
CRUISE SHIPPING Inc, GREEN4SEA SHIPPING 1 inc, GREEN4SEA SHIPPING 2 Inc, GREENASEA
SHIPPING 3 Inc, GREEN4SEA SHIPPING 4 Inc, DREAM ONE SHIFPING Inc, RIVER CRUISE SHIPPRING,
POLAR EXPEDITIONS B.V. The Netherlands, POLAR EXPEDITIONS Inc Marshall Islands, PQOLAR
EXPLORER Inc, POLARIS EXPEDITIONS inc, POLARIS EXPLORATION inc, TROPICAL CRUISE
SHIPPING inc, XB AHTS COMPANION SHIPPING Inc, XB AHTS GUARDIAN SHIPPING !inc, XB AHTS
HERO SHIPPING Inc i XB AHTS SUPPORTER SHIPPING Inc. Through the subsidiary BRODOSPLIT, the
Group also manages Brodosplit Italia.

On 1 September 2017, the company Brodosplit-Holding d.0.0. was merged with the company Brodosplit d.d.
On the date of the merger, the company Brodosplit d.d. took over 50% of shares and management rights in
companies Kamen-dent d.o.o., Bosna i Hercegovina and also a 100% shares and management rights in the
Brodosplit Italia s.r.L., ltaly from the company Brodosplit-Holding d.c.c.

In 2017, there were mergers of subsidiaries in which Brodosplit d.d. has a 100% share:
« Brodosplit - Armature d.o.0., date of merger: 28 December 2017
« Brodosplit - Dizalice d.0.0., date of merger: 29 December 2017
» Brodosplit - Metalna cprema i konstrukcije d.0.0., date of merger: 29 December 2017
« Brodosplit - Nemetalna oprema d.o.o., date of merger: 28 December 2017
» Brodosplit - Antikorozivna zastita d.o.o., date of merger. 29 December 2017
« Brodosplit - Holding d.0.0 , date of merger: 1 September 2017
» Brodosplit - 1zolaciia d.0.0.. date of merger. 29 December 2017

On 19 October 2017, the company Brodosplit-Projekti d.o.o was merged with the company DIV GRUPA
d.o.o

All rights and obligations of acquired companies pass to acquifing company with the date of acquisition.
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NOTE 31 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Revenue from sale of goods and service
Froizvodno Trgovadki Centar Krka Knin d.o.o.

Marine and Energy Solutions 31V d.c.0.
Kazmen dent d.o.o,

Purchase of goods and services
Proizvodno Trgovadki Centar Krka Knin d.o.0,
Marine and Energy Solutions DVd.0.0.

Trade recelvables
Marine Consulting d.o.o

Trade payables
Proizvodne Trgovatki Centar Krka Knin d.o.0.
Measine and Energy Solutions [N d.o.0.

NOTE 31 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Liahilitles for accepted borrowings
Owners
Proizvodno Trgovadki Centar Krka Knin d.o.a.

Remuneration to key Management

2020 2019

(in thousands of HRK)

453 1,304
32 64

- 248
485 1,618
2020 2019

(fn thousands of HRK)

6,658 8,856
3,026 3,320
9,684 12,176

31 December 31 December
2020 2019

(in thousands of HRK)

31 December 31 December
2020 2019

{in thousands of HRK)

11,702 1,257
897 -
12,598 1,257

31 Dacember 31 December
2020 2019

(in thousands of HRK)

62,268 -
- 13,579

62,268 13,579

The key management of the Sroup comprises 44 amployees (in 20719.; 3% employees). 'n 2020,
a total of HRK 11,113 thousand was paid as remuneration to 1he mambers of the Management Board (in

2018 HRK 10,210 thousand) basad on gross salary,
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NCOTE 32 - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND ASSETS
Brodasplit d.d.

Company through DIV Brodogradnja d.o.0. has 99.83% stake in Brodosplit d.d. pursuant to the Sale and
Transfer Agreement of Brodosplit plc, the contractual obligations relating to the implementation of the
restructuring program have beery defined as of 28 February 2013. Particularly important narts of the
restructuring program are conside red: the share of its own contribution in total restructuring costs. adjustment
of preduction shipbuilding capacities of the Company, restriction of praduction of ships to CGT (compensated
gross tonnage) and achieving sustainability; whose non-fulfilment may result in an order to Brodosplit d.d.
and Its subsidiaries for the repayment of all grants received after 1 March 2006, plus statulory default interest

The share of own contribution implies the obligation of the Company Brodospiit d.d. and subsidiaries in
accordance with the restructuring program, accounting for 40% of total restructuring costs. Part of the total
costs was also related to the obligation to increase the share capital by HRK 50 millien in the armount of HRK
20 million in 2013, HRK 20 millior: in 2014 and HRK 10 million in 2015, The stated obligation to increase the
share capital is fully met. The Cormrpany commissioned a study of its cwn contribution by experts fram Brussels
in1h= area of EU law and governmant grants, which showed thzd its own contribution to restructuring accounts
for mare than 40% of total restruciuring costs and proved that the cornpany was setthng i1s liabilities.

Adustment of production capacity and preduction limit depending on the tonnage defined by the restructuring
program and the agreement on the limitation of production for t-e period until 31 December 2022 in which
ihe production cannot be higher than agreed.

Achleving sustainability includes the following measurss: maintaining at Jeast 2,000 employees in the
Cormpany and subsidiaries at the end of each month during the implementation of the restructuring program,
maintaining a minimum number of effective hours at & defined Igvel in September 2017, maintaining a
minimum amount of steel at a defined level by September 2017, maintaining the position of capital and
reserves at the end of the year, al the end of 2047 at a defined leve!, and a positive consolidated business at
the ena of 2016 and 2017. The Company maintained the above mentoned measures until the reporting date
and achieved a viability condition in accordance with the Agreemant.

In acdition, the buyer {DIV Brodugradnja d.o.0.) based on the Sala and Transfer Agreement is entitled to
ferminate the Contract in the event of hidden obligations for which the Purchaser did not know &t the time of
the conclusion of the Contract. In this case, the Selter shall return o the Purchaser the paid purchase price
and the amount of paid up capital increase, totalling HRK 53,701 thousand all plus interest at the expsnse
rale of the Croatian National Bark on the day of termination of the contract, increased by 2%,

DM GRUPA d.o.0. and subsidiaries 78



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDA ED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

NOTE 32 - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND ASSETS (CONTINUED)
Investment in Min Div Svrijig a.d. and DIV Betonski pragovi d.c.5.

In the period from 2006 to 2009, the Company increased its stare of ownership in the subsidiary company
Min v Svrljig a.d. in the recapitalization from 77.50% to 86.46%. Due to the increase in ownership, the
Corpany had an obligation to make a public bid for the remaining 1.28,372 shares. The deadline for the offer
for the purchase of shares expirec in 2010 and the Company paid a fine for not fulfilting this obligaticn, There
is no new legal deadline for the Company to bid. Regarding the passible outcome, DIV GRUPA, 4.0.9. or must
announce a public offering or dispose of shares over 25%. The subject of the dispute is the rede mplion price
per share that will be offered to nunority shareholders. On Decainber 31 2019 the shares were cuoted at a
price o RSD 645 and on the orde- of DIV GRUPA d.0.0. an assessment made by the auditing conipany and
the price of ane share is RS0 601,

Furkermore, DIV GRUPA d.o.o, and DIV Betonski pragov: d.0.0. dur ng the takeover, they underlaok to meet
cetlain conditions, and in Novemlxar 2019 the Agreement on the allocation of funds for direct irvestments
with the Ministry of Finance of the Republic of Serbia was successtully implemented, on the basis of which
lurds for direct investments in the a-rount of EUR 2,400,000.00 were obtained.

tonskl pragovi d.c.o. as cf [lecember 31, 2019, had invested EUR 12.9 million and had 303 e mpioyeses,
5 of December 31, 2020. an acd.bonal EUR 0.172 million and had 267 employees.

The final audit reports were submi'ted to the Ministry, on the Dasis of which it was determ ned that all
obigations had been fuffilled. Ir Janusry 2020, security instruments for good perfarmance were returned,

Exposure to court disputes

As of 31 December 2020, the Group is involved in a series of legal disputes in the ordinary course of
opsrations and court cases with former employees. Based on consultation with legal advisers, the
Managament Board applied the judgement and estimated that legal proceedings in which the Group is
involved should not result in additional significant losses. in addition to those court cases, for which provision
han been made, there are other legal disputes that will not result in significant losses.

Issuend warranties

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has issued guarantees In tha total amount of HRK 106,314 thousand
13" December 2019: HRK 243,697 thousand).

Qverview and debenture exposure:

DI GRUPA d.o.0. as at 31 Decernber 2020 has issuad bonds in the total nominal amount of HEK 1,176,240
thausand (31 December 2019: HRK 1,170,127 thousand). The amount of the debt issued by the Group for
Its own placements in nominal amount is HRK 350,521 thousand. for suppliers HRK 18,913 thousand

Thi Company and the Group keep records of issued bonds at nominal values in accordaince with the
contracts. The aggregate amount of Ihe nominal amount does not rapresent the maximum contingent liability
dug to the fact that according to certain contracts, the Company or Group is obliged to issue several
debentures which are individually in the amount of the total original obligation.

As al 31 Decernber 2020 Amount Condition
fin thousands of HRK)

Debentures towards suppliers and the state 41,824 18,913
Debentures towards financial inslitutions 1,003,086 350,521
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NCTE 33 — SUBSEQUENT EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

DI CRUPA d.o.0. has closed its liability to Zagrebacka banka d.u. gnd Addika bank {EBRD) wtich was due
i 030, Brodosplit d.d. has closal its Yiability to Pedravska bank and Erste bank.

Itwas agreed to take over part of the work on the reconstruction o th e existing and construction of {ne secend
Irack of the railway on the section Dugo Selo - Krizevei project from Zagreb MontaZa d.o.o. This. except that
it i'ireases the share in the proje- | (by approximately HRK 150 million), actually enables the performance of
we ik Irom a part of the Company 1originally contracted).

A new project has been contracied for the construction of the wrossroads "Sirne” in Sofin in the value of
approximately EUR 20 million, which gives additional meaning to the purchase of equipment for « anstruction,
new employment and increase st fl costs.

For e first time in Croatia, 180 23000 (securily system) was adopted, which additionatly pasitioned the
Company towards some key custurners,

The spread of Coronavirus has had & detrimental effect on ecaoncmiss around the world in terms ol declining
bumingss volumes and branch clssures. The sijuation with the Covid-19 pandemic aiso had a significant
impac: on the business activities o DIV GRUPA d.o.0. in 2020 ac early 2021,

Ths Group has made all the necissary preparations to make a dezision related to the introductan of anti-
dunp ng duties for standard screny goods in the EU, which is exy ec'ed to significantly increase :demand and
inc-ease the competitiveness of the Company during 2021,

Or 15 February 2021, an arbitre: cecision was made in a dispute between BRODOSPLIT 2.4 and Star
Clinpers Lid. in the amount of € |13 750,925.47, At the same time, a court case was iniliated Lo anhu! the
art decigion. Star Clippers Lid, initiated the procedure of recognizing the Final verdict of the arbitral
de n. The Commercial Cour: ruled to stay the proceedings until the conclusion of the prozeetings for
anaulment of the arbitral decision before a court in Nethedands Sia- Clippers Lid. has filed an appeai with
ihe: High Commercial Court of #ha Republic of Croatia.

Sta- Clippers Ltd. entered a mcartgage on the ship for the customer's delivery in the amcunt of EUR
5,432 812.52. Brodosplit does not dispute this amount, and has offered payment on several pccasions,
proviced that a statement on delation is presented. Star Clippers Lid. has, nevertheless, decided to exercise
its right 1o arrest the ship to which we have responded by payirg the requesled funds. Since the bank
trai-sactions were not completed on the same day, the ship spent the night (July 15, 2021) in Dover, after
wtizh the voyage continued. By paying the requested amount, the conditions for defeting the maortgage have
beun created, which is expected in the coming weeks.

Or April 1, 2021, a new ship 487 was delivered - a ship for cruisirg the polar regions.

BRODOSPLUIT d d. participates in this project as a subcontractor and itis planned to build 14 segrmants of the
main bridge girder, with a total welght of 2000 tons.

Company Tradewind Voyages continues booking for Golden Horzon, and in 2021 the first tourisl tours in the
UK began.

COvin 13

Uncerainty about the further course of the pandemic continues to nose a risk to the Group's fu'ure financial
positicn and the associated liquicity risk. However, the Manag:ment Board is using Government support
measures, and business rationalization activities are baing underaken. Therefore, the Management Board
heiieves that the adverse effects caused by the impact of COVID 1% will not lead to significant uncerainty in
the Group's ability to operate in the fuiure. Further development of the virus may lead 1o the reed o change
aszumptions and estimates, which in tum may result in significant adjustments to the carrying amount of
asuels and liabilities in the next financial year. At this time, the Management Board is not able to reliably
asuess the impact given the daily development of these events.
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NOTE 34 - APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Tnese financial statements vere approved by the Managemeart Board ang authorised fur issue on

September 17 2021,

Signed for and on behalf of the Group Management Board on Zeple mber 17, 2021.
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